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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mERE

For the year ended 30 June
HBEAA=THLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—E-=f —T--F —T-—F —T-TE —T-h#F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET T

Revenue Wz 534,445 657,726 380,090 311,835 282,037

Income tax expense FrEfifEx 26,497 26,552 15,950 8,897 8,754

Profit for the year FREF 77,486 115,780 77,832 44,853 32,252

Profit for the year attributable to AREEE A
owners of the Company PR Em 77,486 115,780 77,832 44,853 32,252
As at 30 June
RAA=t+H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—E-=f —T--f —T-—F CZT-TE —E-hEF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T FET T T

Total assets wEE 698,807 719,229 490,208 410,827 341,924

Total liabilities Bwaf 209,710 251,866 104,930 87,710 42,710
Equity attributable to RRARRERFEA

equity holders of the Company FE(hER 489,097 467,363 385,278 323,117 299,214
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2022/2023 was continuing to be a challenging year to Sun
Hing Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to the “Group”). The Group was exposed under
several market challenges and uncertainties, such as continuous
impact of geopolitical tension, outbreak of Russo-Ukrainian War,
ongoing trade dispute between the United States of America (the
“USA") and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), and concern
about the slowing global economic growth and high inflation that led to
pessimistic economy sentiment all over the world.

As the abovementioned factors posed ongoing challenges to majority
sectors in Hong Kong by undermining investment and business
environment, they indirectly discouraged the financial performance to
our Group in the year 2022/2023. Furthermore, the outbreak of the
COVID-19 in prior years aggravated global economy and changed
consumers’ behavior around the world.

Based on the above reasons, the Group's 2022/2023 profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company dropped to HK$77.5
milion (2021/2022: HK$115.8 million). The decrease in the profit was
mainly attributable to drop in the revenue, because of customers’
concern about slowing global economic growth and high inflation
all over the world, and also reduction of the customers’ sentiment.
Basic eamings per share was HK16.14 cents (2021/2022: HK24.12
cents). The Company has proposed a final dividend of HK4.3 cents
(2021/2022: HKB.8 cents). Together with interim dividend of HK2.2
cents (2021/2022. HK1.8 cents), the Company has proposed a total
dividend of HK6.5 cents (2021/2022: total dividend of HK8.6 cents),
which the Group intended to maintain a stable dividend return to reward
our shareholders of the Group and to reflect our confidence in our
strong financial performance.

Looking forward to the Year 2023/2024, the market will still be full of
challenges and uncertainties. Under the ongoing threat from global
economy downtun and high inflation over the world and geopolitical
tension in Asia, worldwide economy is expected to be volatile. The
Group will maintain its stringent cost control measures, enhance the
Group’s overall production efficiency and maintain its competitiveness in
the market.
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FERE

In addition, the Group will further devote resources and manpower
to boost internal operation effectiveness, and will grasp opportunities
arising from potential new markets, such as environmental friendly
packaging market for sustainable growth. While we are also proactively
looking into the market for the latest printing associated technologies,
advanced machinery and innovative materials, to provide value-added
services to our customers and to differentiate ourselves from our
competitors.

Last but not least, employees are the greatest asset to the Group, we
will persist in providing training to our employees, in order to facilitate
the upcoming development of the Group.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, investors, business partners, management and all the
staff members for their increasing support and dedication to the Group.
We will continue to provide the market with innovative, reliable and high-
quality printing products to our customers, and to drive the Group’s
business development in the long term. We believe these will empower
us to achieve a better performance and create greater value for our
customers, investors and shareholders.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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FOCUS

ON PAPER-RELATED PRINTING PRODUCTS
EmIRENRmAE

Products are mainly used in the markets of various consumer

products as well as for the purposes of promotion, advertising and education.
BN R mEAREZ  BRTANEEBERMS  UEKAREE -
BERBEERE




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DM

REVIEW OF OPERATION

Sun Hing Printing Holdings Group is a one-stop printing service
provider. Our printing services can be broadly categorised into (i)
packaging printing services which cover, among others, corrugated
boxes, gift boxes, card boxes and product boxes; (i) paper gift set
printing services which cover, among others, gift sets containing gift
boxes, cards, booklets and hardback books; (i) card printing services
which cover, among others, colour cards, insert cards, warranty cards
and plain cards; (iv) smart package printing services which cover,
among others, Near-field communications (‘NFC”) tags, Radiofrequency
Identification (‘RFID”) labels and Real QR code; and (v) other printing
services which cover, among others, stickers, colour papers, yupo
papers and red packets.

Despite reopening of border between the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") and Hong Kong in early February 2023, printing industry
in Hong Kong is still struggling with unfavorable economic climate.
Qutbreak of Russo-Ukrainian War, concern about slowing global
economic growth and high inflation, as well as geopolitical tension
are relentlessly challenging the Group’s business operations and
development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 18.7% to
approximately HK$534.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2023
compared to last year. The decrease in the Group'’s revenue was
affected by the drop in contribution from packaging and paper gift
set printing services, as a result of customers’ concern about slowing
global economic growth and high inflation all over the world, and also
reduction of the customers’ sentiment. Thus, customers took more
conservative approach to reduce spending on printing and promotion
products, and it led to a drop in sales orders received from both
oversea and local customers.

The gross profit decreased by approximately 17.3% from approximately
HK$266.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2022 to approximately
HK$220.8 milion for the year ended 30 June 2023, as a result of the
drop in revenue.

With drop in provision of redundancy costs made for relocation of
workers, our gross profit margin increased slightly from approximately
40.6% for the year ended 30 June 2022 to approximately 41.3% for
the year ended 30 June 2023. Our net profit for the year reduced
by approximately HK$38.3 million from HK$115.8 million for the year
ended 30 June 2022 to approximately HK$77.5 million for the year
ended 30 June 2023, as a result of decrease in revenue and loss
of disposal and write-off of the property, plant and equipment in the
factories located in the PRC. The net profit margin decreased from
approximately 17.6% for the year ended 30 June 2022 to approximately
14.5% for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Basic eamings per share for the year ended 30 June 2023 was
HK16.14 cents, compared to a basic earnings per share of HK24.12
cents for the year ended 30 June 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRD

BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW EREBENBE
The Group comprises five key business units (2022: five). AEERAE(ZE-—F  AfE)FZXEBHEMMA
}ﬁ o

Revenue contribution for the year ended 30 June 2023

BE-—E-=ZXA=Z1tHLFENKIZSE

3.8%2.0%
5.2%
® Packaging Printing 625 E[
© Paper Gift Set Printing #t1& @& EN |
©® Card Printing 15 K2 EN R
® Smart Package Printing %5 4 £ 2 EN|
33. 3% © Other Printing E b ENR
55.7%
Revenue contribution for the year ended 30 June 2022
BE-E-—FXA=Z1tHLFENKISE
3.7%1.6%
® Packaging Printing £%£ EN
@ Paper Gift Set Printing 4512 & &% ENf
35. 1 % © Card Printing 555 k2 E1 7
0,
55.5% © Smart Package Printing %5 ¢ % ENf
© Other Printing E fth ENf
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW (o
Packaging printing

Packaging printing services cover, among others, corrugated boxes,
gift boxes, card boxes and product boxes. For the year ended
30 June 2023, revenue from packaging printing decreased by
approximately 22.8% to approximately HK$177.7 milion as compared
to approximately HK$230.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2022.
The decline was mainly caused by conversative consumption approach
taken by customers under concem of slowing global economic growth
and high inflation. Some of our customers, therefore postponed some
new and potential projects, leading to a drop on demand in packaging
boxes accordingly.

Paper gift set printing

Paper gift set printing services cover, among others, gift sets containing
gift boxes, cards, booklets and hardback books. For the year ended
30 June 2023, revenue from paper gift set printing reduced by
approximately 18.5% to approximately HK$297.7 milion as compared
to approximately HK$365.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2022,
The drop in revenue from paper gift set printing was primarily because
the customers took conservative consumption approach under concem
of slowing global economic growth and high inflation. It led to reduction
of the customer sentiment, therefore, our customers tightened their
spendings on promotion and marketing products and even postponed
some new and potential projects of paper gift set printing. To such a
degree, the Group’s sales orders received from those oversea and local
customers reduced accordingly.

Card printing

Card printing services cover, among others, colour cards, insert
cards, warranty cards and plain cards. For the year ended 30 June
2023, revenue from card printing increased by approximately 3.0% to
approximately HK$28.0 million as compared to 2022. The growth in
revenue from card printing was primarily caused by special promotion
campaigns launched by oversea customers in the current year. It
contributed to a rise in orders on card printing products consequently.

Smart package printing

Smart package printing services cover, among others, RFID labels,
NFC tags and Real QR code, in order to provide value-added services
to our existing and potential customers. For the year ended 30 June
2023, revenue from smart package printing dropped by approximately
16.5% to approximately HK$20.3 milion as compared to 2022, The
decline in revenue from smart packaging printing was attributed to
more conservative consumption approach taken by the customers
under concemn of slowing global economic growth and high inflation.
Fewer retail customers, therefore were wiling to consume on marketing
and promotional products in Europe, USA and Hong Kong, leading to
reduction of customers’ orders in smart package printing products.

Other printing

Other printing services cover, among others, stickers, colour papers,
yupo papers and red packets. For the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022, revenue from other printing remained stable at approximately
HK$10.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DM

OUTLOOK

The year of 2022/2023 was challenging in view of geopolitical tension,
outbreak of Russo-Ukrainian War and concern about the slowing global
economic growth and high inflation. Furthermore, uncertain material
supplies, global inflation on material costs, increase in labour costs,
and imposition of various stringent environmental control required by
different countries and cities on printing industry are threatening the
Group’s business operations and development in the foreseeable
future.

In order to facilitate the reopening of the border between the PRC
and Hong Kong, the Group will actively seek for further business
development and advanced printing technology breakthrough.
Furthermore, the Group is also accelerating the machine automation
project, so as to improve operation efficiency and lay less reliance on
manpower. In light of varying business environment, our management
has always maintained stringent control over our manufacturing costs
in order to make our printing products to be more competitive in the
market and has been cautious on pricing our printing products. We
have also worked closely with our existing customers to understand
their needs and provide value-added services for them to maintain
good business relationship. In addition, our Group is proactively
exploring opportunities on promotion of our smart package and
sustainable products to our customers, which could significantly
differentiate ourselves from our competitors. With the Group’s
experienced management team and reputation in printing industry,
our management believes the Group is well-equipped to deal with the
forthcoming challenges and to maintain sustainable growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 18.7% to
approximately HK$534.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2023,
comparing to approximately HK$657.7 million for the year ended
30 June 2022. The drop in revenue was primarily due to the decline
in contribution from packaging and paper gift set printing services
because of customers’ concermn about slowing global economic growth
and high inflation all over the world. Customers took more conservative
consumption approach and reduced their sales orders on marketing
and promotion products, leading to less sales orders from those
oversea and local customers.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by approximately 17.3% from approximately
HK$266.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2022 to approximately
HK$220.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2023, as a result of drop
in revenue.

With drop in provision of redundancy costs made for relocation of
workers, our gross profit margin increased slightly from approximately
40.6% for the year ended 30 June 2022 to approximately 41.3% for
the year ended 30 June 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses was approximately HK$7.8 million
and approximately HK$10.2 million for the years ended 30 June 2023
and 2022, respectively, which mainly included salaries of salespeople
and freight charges. Selling and distribution expenses decreased was
essentially led by decrease in sales made during the current year and
lower redundancy costs paid to Shenzhen selling and distribution staff.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses remained relatively stable at approximately
HK$106.3 million and approximately HK$108.4 million for the years
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 respectively.

Other operating expenses, net

The Group recorded other operating expenses of approximately
HKS$7.7 million and approximately HK$3.6 million for the years ended
30 June 2023 and 2022, respectively. The increase in other operating
expenses for the year ended 30 June 2023 was mainly because of
loss on disposal and write-off of the property, plant and equipment in
the factories located in the PRC during the current year.

Other income and government grants

Other income and government grants were approximately HK$3.9
million for the year ended 30 June 2022 and increased to approximately
HK$13.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2023. The Group had
made more time deposits and decent interest rates were offered by the
banks during the current year.

Finance costs

Finance costs were approximately HK$8.5 million and approximately
HK$6.3 million for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022
respectively. Higher finance costs were resulting from lease liabilities for
lease of a factory in Huizhou which commenced in October 2021. The
new factory was under full year operation for the year ended 30 June
2023, instead of approximately eight months for the year ended 30
June 2022, leading to higher finance costs recorded by the Group in
the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW ¢

Income tax expense

Income tax expense remained stable at approximately HK$26.5 million
and HK$26.6 million for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022,
respectively. The effective tax rate increased from approximately 18.7%
for the year ended 30 June 2022 to approximately 25.5% for the year
ended 30 June 2023, because of derecognition of deferred tax assets
with amount of approximately HK$7.6 million during the current year.

Liquidity and capital resources

Our net assets amounted to approximately HK$489.1 million and
approximately HK$467 .4 milion as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022
respectively. The increase in net assets was primarily due to the profit
generated from the operations during the current year.

The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash and cash
equivalents and net cash generated from operating activities. The
directors expects that the Group will rely on the interally generated
funds and unutilised net proceeds from the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange on 16 November 2017, in the
absence of unforeseen circumstances.

As at 30 June 2023, our cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$305.9 million (30 June 2022: approximately
HK$237.4 million); and our net current assets were approximately
HK$308.8 million (30 June 2022: approximately HK$265.9 million).
The current ratio, being current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 4.1 and 3.1 as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had approximately HK$305.9 million
total cash on hand, of which approximately HK$O.1 million was
restricted cash and denominated in Renminbi. For the remaining
balance of approximately HK$305.8 million, approximately HK$15.3
million was denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, approximately
HK$280.5 million was denominated in US Dollars, and approximately
HK$10.0 million was denominated in Renminbi. The Group’s cash in
US Dollars and Renminbi were held to support its core operational
needs. In addition, the Group had approximately HK$281.1 million of
fixed time deposits with maturity within 12 months. For the fixed time
deposits, approximately HK$1.0 million was denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars and approximately HK$280.1 million was denominated in
US Dollars.

As at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing bank borrowings, and thus the computation of the
gearing ratios were not applicable as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June
2022.

During the year, the Group recorded approximately HK$96.9 million
in capital expenditure, which was mostly deployed for automation,
equipment upgrades and leasehold improvement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE
OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilites and did not
pledge any assets as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022,

OUR EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2023, we had 729 employees in Hong Kong and
the Mainland China. During the peak season, namely from June to
September for each year, in order to maximise our production capacity,
we employ more employees for production, who are principally
responsible for certain post-press processes and packaging which
have to be done manually and cannot otherwise be achieved by
automatic machines.

Our direct labour cost, including salaries, bonuses and other
employee’s benefits, amounted to approximately HK$58.4 milion and
approximately HK$74.6 million for the years ended 30 June 2023
and 2022, respectively. The Group had recorded redundancy costs
amounted to approximately HK$0.9 million for the year ended 30 June
2023 (2022 approximately HK$20.2 million). Remuneration packages
are generally structured by reference to market terms and individual
qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally reviewed annually based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK4.3 cents per share
in cash. The proposed final dividend is subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
These, together with an interim dividend of HK2.2 cents (2022: HK1.8
cents) per share paid in March 2023, will make a total dividend of
HKB6.5 cents (2022 HK8.6 cents) per share for the current year. The
proposed final dividend is expected to be distributed on Wednesday,
20 December 2023 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Wednesday, 29 November
2028.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFWR DM

USE OF PROCEEDS
Net proceeds from the initial public offering were HK$124.0 million after
deducting all the direct costs associated with the Listing.

Up to the date of this report, the Group had used approximately
HK$80.6 million for equipment upgrades on the improvement of the
production process, approximately HK$31.0 million for relocation of
a factory in Shenzhen (“Shenzhen Factory”), approximately HK$8.3
million for general working capital and approximately HK$1.3 million for
the upgrade of enterprise resources planning (‘ERP”) system. During
the year, the net proceeds, have been used for the purpose consistent
with the section headed “Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” as set
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 2 November 2017 (the
“Prospectus”).

Details of the allocation of the net proceeds, and the utilisation of the
net proceeds up to the date of this report are set out below:

FrERRIEAR
M LA B EERAK - BRAME
EFREREFRAI140EBET -

RAREBH  AEECERLH0EESBIT
HBI0BEE B HS3EEB LN I3ES
BEDAARNELEETF 2 REL BB
FYHE - —REBEESRABRCEERAE
(TERP)) R - FN - FIBFUIEFECIREAR
ABMA—ZT—tHF+—A_BHNBRERE ([
RER]) rE [ RRFTEIRAMBRERR] —&
HFHNAESA -

RARE B - PISHIRFREN D BB A RPT
SRIBFENSHABEREINAT

Actual usage Unutilised net

up to proceeds up to
Percentage of Planned the date of the date of
Intended application of the net proceeds total proceeds applications this report this report
FrSTIEEER HERE BEARERS RARERH
RERE BENEAL SHERRER WERERER WRBRALE
% HKS in million HKS in million HKS in million
BEET BEET FEET
Purchase four presses by stages 65.0 80.6 80.6 -
PEEEEN DRI
Relocation of Shenzhen Factory 250 310 310 -
BERIRE
Upgrade ERP system (Note 1) 33 4.1 13 2.8
FRERPREE (M1 1)
General working capital 6.7 83 8.3 -
~HEERS
Totdl 100.0 124.0 1212 28
st

Note 1: The Group had entered into agreements with independent third party
ERP service providers to update our systems. Up to the date of this
report, we have already utilised approximately HK$1.3 million to the
service providers for the update of our ERP system. We expect to fully
utilise the relevant proceeds on or before 31 December 2024.

Bt REBEBT H = REHERE L T HE
EHMERMORSE - BEARREAH  HMEF
BHO1CEERB LA TERBGEENEEIERP
A HFABEHEER T -_mE+-/F=+—
A2 BB S AR ATS 5KE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principle of the Company emphasizes on accountability
and transparency and is adopted in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. In addition the Company will strive to continuously
improve these practices and cultivate an ethical corporate culture.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out on in the
Code of Corporate Governance (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions in the CG Code
since 30 June 2022 up to the date of this report.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is composed of
7 directors, of which 4 are Executive Directors and 3 are Independent
Non-executive Directors. All the Independent Non-executive Directors
have appropriate professional qualifications, experience or related
industry expertise. The Directors’ biography and relevant relationships
amongst them are set out in the Directors’ and Senior Management's
Profiles section under Report of the Directors on pages 94 to 98 of this
Annual Report.

Review will be made regularly by the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirement of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Also, a balanced
composition of Executive Directors is maintained to ensure
independence and effective management. The Company has satisfied
the Listing Rules in having one of the Independent Non-executive
Directors with appropriate accounting qualifications and expertise to sit
in the Audit Committee.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 and
Appendix 16(12B) of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEAKE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications. An updated list of the Directors identifying the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the roles and functions of the
Directors is maintained on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

When selecting potential candidates for directors, skills, experience,
expertise, their devotion of time, potential conflicts of interests are key
factors of consideration. The Nomination Committee was set up to
make recommendations to the Board on the selection and nomination
of candidates for directorship. Majority of members of the Nomination
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board is accountable to shareholders and is responsible for the
formulation of the Group’s strategy, overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group.

Key and important decisions are fully discussed at the board meetings.
All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters proposed for
inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at regular intervals. The
Board would meet more frequently as and when required.

All the Directors are covered by the Director's & Officer’s Liability
Insurance, which is also part of our best practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES (Continued)

The attendance record of the Directors at the board meetings since
30 June 2022 up to the date of this report is as follows:

TRERBE

B —FNA=-Zt+HEREEAREHE
EERRESTE SR IGHEOT

Attendance
Board meetings
HER
EEEE3
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang PREE A e A 5/5
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin PRAGER A 5/5
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PRAZEASE & 5/5
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond PREESTAE 5/5

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry REuhE 5/5
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis PN e 5/5
Mr. WONG Kam Fai HiIRE A 4/5

Notice of at least fourteen days is given to the Directors for regular
meetings, while Board papers are sent to the Directors not less than
three days before the scheduled date of a board or board committee
meeting. The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication. The Company Secretary
ensures that the procedure and all applicable rules and regulations are
strictly and fully complied with. Minutes of board meetings and board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Directors.

Directors have full access to information on the Group and are able to
obtain independent professional advice whenever necessary.

EHeRARSENTHRRESHELEM M
EREENMHANEZEHEZZEERRRTA
FEMA T OR=ZAXEEFE - EFHALSE
BEMETBRIANNFEEE - ARIMERRE
REEETEBRFANAEERRLA -
EEe e EEZZREeRZEREHAR
WERE FNERRZEAERBLHELESE
WA O ERMEHLCHE -
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BRBEIEEESR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N ,'_qu*Etl:

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will meet with other Directors and key
management executives, and will receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment.
Subsequently, he/she will receive briefings and other professional
development necessary to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Company and he/
she is fully aware of his/her responsibility with the Company.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors
are also invited to participate in the Company events to familiarize
themselves with the operations of the Company and create opportunity
to communicate with other management members of the Company.

The records of training as received by each Director for the year ended
30 June 2023 are summarized as follows:

ESEEIIRXE
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ERITHRAESE
X2 EARE
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MMENANHE LR  BREETHRIERS
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AR ARAEARRTEE  TAERGERAR
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BREENEE_TS_=FA=THLFES
Xz e st T

Type of trainings

EHER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang PR 88 A S A A
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin PRAEER A A
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PR SRR A AE A
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond PREESTE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry RETEE A
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis L A
Mr. WONG Kam Fai = ﬁ%ﬁf’ﬁi A
A reading materials relating to general business, regulatory updates on Al HEAE—MRER  ETRASETEEUARES

listing rules and board practices.
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D() SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED $7 8 EN 224 iR 2 & / Annual Report ¥R 2002 / 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND
DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
govemance functions as set out below:

0] developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(v)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors;

(v)  reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

(Vi) reviewing and monitoring the Group's performance against
environmental, social and governance (‘ESG’) related targets and
the materiality of ESG issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee is the person to be notified for securities
dealings by Directors and a designated form is used for notification and
acknowledgement purpose.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, their compliance with the required standards of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transaction since
30 June 2022 up to the date of this report and there was no event of
non-compliance.

Senior management of the Company is also required to comply with
the guidelines on similar terms as set out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEAKE

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company places great importance on internal control and risk
management to safeguard the assets of the Company and the interests
of shareholders. The Board has overall responsibility for the system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for maintaining an
effective system of interal control. The Audit Committee reviews the
process by which the Group evaluates its control environment and risk
assessment process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed through the assistance of the Company’s Intermal Control
Consultant.

The Internal Control Consultant assesses risk exposure and ensures
that the audit programs cover key internal control areas of operating
subsidiaries on a rotational basis for the review by the Audit Committee.

The Internal Control Consultant reports her findings and
recommendations to management of the Company and the Audit
Committee. The Internal Control Consultant also monitors the follow-
up actions agreed upon in response to her recommendations and
reports to the Audit Committee the progress of implementation of those
recommendations.

With the assistance of the Audit Committee and the Company’s Interal
Control Consultant, the Board is satisfied that the overall financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management of the
Group continues to be effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. The Directors ensure that the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 108 to 113 of this Annual
Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the auditors of the Company
received approximately HK$1,338,000 (2022: HK$1,298,000) for
their audit service. Non-audit service which covered taxation service
provided to the Group was approximately HK$61,000 (2022:
HK$62,000) in the same vear.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistle-blowing policy to allow the
employees or other stakeholders (such as suppliers and customers) of
the Group to raise concemns, in confidence, with the Audit Committee
about the possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group does not allow or tolerate any forms of corruption. The
Group has adopted the anti-corruption policy, which outlines the
Group’s zero-tolerance stance against bribery and corruption and sets
out the responsibilities of all business units and employees of the Group
to comply with the applicable anti-corruption laws, rules and regulations

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises 2 Independent Non-executive
Directors and 1 Executive Director. They are Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr. Chan Peter Tit
Sang. The Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms
of reference which are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and the
senior management were reviewed by the Committee. Remuneration,
including basic salary and performance bonus. Annual salary
adjustment and performance bonus are subject to review and approval
by the Committee.

No individual directors and senior managers are allowed to determine
his or her own remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)
The Committee met twice since 30 June 2022 up to the date of this
report with a 100% attendance by all Committee members.

During the vear, the works performed by the Committee included the
following:

- the review of the performance and remuneration packages of
directors and senior management; and

- the review of the remuneration policy of the Group.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises 1 Executive Director,
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang (Committee Chairman) and 2 Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry and Mr. Wong Kam
Fai. The defined terms of reference of the Committee are set out in
wiriting and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the Board
for selection and nomination of directors, and the succession planning
of directors and senior management. The Committee also reviews
the size, structure and composition of the Board with reference to the
Company's board diversity policy and assesses the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Committee met twice since 30 June 2022 and up to the date of
this report with a 100% attendance by all Committee members.
During the year, the works performed by the Committee included the

following:

- the recommendation of the retiring directors for re-election at the
annual general meeting ("*AGM");

- the review of composition of the Board; and

- the assessment of independence of the independent
Non-executive Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE ¢

The Board adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board to enhance
quality of its performance. The policy ams to achieve diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors including but not being limited
to skills, regional and industry experience, background, age, race,
gender and other qualities. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments are based on merit, in the content of the talents, skills
and experience, and taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the composition of
the Board under diversified perspective, and monitor the implementation
of this policy to ensure its effectiveness. It will discuss any revisions
that may be required and recommend such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

During the year ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date of this report,
the Board is a single gender Board, and the Company failed to meet
the requirement set out in Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules in relation to
the Board gender diversity.

On 28 September 2023, the Board has resolved to nominate Ms.
Cheung Mei Yee Loma (“Ms. Cheung”) as a candidate for the proposed
appointment of a non-executive Director of the Company, subject to
the approval by the shareholders of the Company by way of an ordinary
resolution at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. For details,
please refer to the proposed appointment of non-executive director as
disclosed in the announcement dated 28 September 2023.

Following the appointment of Ms. Cheung, the Company will comply
with the requirement under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

For the gender ratio in the workforce (including senior management),
please refer to the ESG report on page 66 in this annual report.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the
Board members have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business.
The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

Reputation for integrity;

° Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the business and
industry;

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

° Compliance with the criteria of independence, in case for the
appointment of an independent non-executive director, as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange;

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service; and

o Any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time as
appropriate.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedure for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended 30 June 2023, there was no change
in the composition of Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors. They are Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry (Committee Chairman),
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis and Mr. Wong Kam Fai. The defined terms of
reference of the Committee are set out in writing and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control and the Company’s internal
audit function, risk management system and regulatory compliance, the
review of the Company’s financial information and compliance, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditor and assessing its independence and performance.

Since 30 June 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Committee
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SEEAKE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (contin.
The works performed by the Committee during the year included the
following:

- reviewing with the auditor on key audit and accounting matters,
and updates on regulatory rules in the auditor's Audit Committee
Report and the draft audited financial statements for the financial
year ended 30 June 2023.

- reviewing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2023 focusing on business highlights, any change of accounting
policies and practices, and compliance with accounting
standards and listing rules requirements.

- reviewing with the auditor the scope of their audit, their
communication plan, their independence, developments affecting
the Company’s business, their risk assessment and updates of
accounting standards and listing rules as affecting the Company
for the financial year ended 30 June 2023.

- reviewing the audit plan, audit progress report and significant
audit findings with management at all committee meetings.

- reviewing with management on implementation of the recommendations
on interal control made by the Internal Control Consultant.

- reviewing the risk management and interal control of the Group.

The Committee is satisfied with the review of the work of external
auditors, their audit fees, results of their audits and has recommended
to the Board their re-appointment for the financial year ending on
30 June 2024 at the forthcoming AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. A decision to declare and pay
any dividends would require the approval of the Board and will be at
their discretion. The Board may from time to time determine and pay
to the Company’s shareholders such interim dividends as it considers
appropriate. The Board may recommend the payment of final dividends
which are required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meetings.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company recognizes the importance of communication with
the shareholders of the Company, both individual and institutional as
well as potential investors. The Company adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring that shareholders are
provided with timely information about the Company and enabling them
to engage actively with the Company and to exercise their rights in an
informed manner.

The AGM also provides a good opportunity for communication between
the Board and shareholders. The Executive Chairman of the Board, the
Chairman of the respective Committees as well as the external auditors
are normally present to answer questions as raised by shareholders.
Notice of the AGM and the related circular are sent to shareholders at
least 21 days before the meeting.

Votes of the shareholders at general meeting will be taken by poll in
accordance with the Listing Rules. Detailed procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained to shareholders at the beginning of the general
meeting to ensure that shareholders are familiar with the voting
procedures. Each issue will be proposed by a separate resolution by the
Chairman of the general meeting. The poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the same day of
the general meeting. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”).

The 2022 AGM was held on 25 November 2022 at 10/F, United
Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong. Businesses transacted
at the 2022 AGM included the adoption of audited consolidated
financial statements, the approval of final dividend, the re-election
of Directors and fixing of the Directors’ fees, the re-appointment
of auditors, the renewal of general mandates with respect to the
repurchase of shares and the issue of new shares, and amendment of
constitutional documents.

The attendance records of the Directors at the 2022 AGM are set out
below:
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Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PR A BR o v
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond PREESE v
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(Continued)

Procedures and right for shareholders to

convene EGM

- An EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
(the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
Pe held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

- The requisition must state clearly the names of the Eligible
Shareholders concerned, specify the objects of the meeting, and
be signed by the Eligible Shareholders concerned. The Eligible
Shareholders must prove their shareholdings in the Company to
the satisfaction of the Company.

- The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board
will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the requirements under the Articles to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order or the Shareholders concerned have failed to
deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call
for an EGM.

- If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures and right for shareholders to
convene EGM (Coninued)

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Companies Law (Revised) of
Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles, shareholders who
wish to move a resolution may by means of requisition convene an
EGM.,

Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company's
registered office. Shareholders are encouraged to access to the
Company website at http://www.sunhingprinting.com for all relevant
information including Company’s announcements, press releases,
financial highlights, the Company’s constitutional documents and
detailed procedures for shareholders to convene meetings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has a proactive policy for promoting investor
relations and communications by maintaining a regular dialogue
with investors and other stakeholders. The Company’'s website at
http://www.sunhingprinting.com also features a dedicated Investor
Relations section to facilitate communication with shareholders and
investors. Corporate information and other relevant financial and
non-financial information are made available electronically and in a
timely manner.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERBE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

The Group is pleased to present its environmental, social and
governance (‘ESG") report (the “ESG Report”) to all of its stakeholders.
The content contained herein focuses on providing an overview of
the ESG performance of the Group’s major operations in the People’s
Republic of China ("PRC”) and Hong Kong from 1 July 2022 to 30
June 2023 ("FY2022/23" or the “Reporting Year”). The ESG Report also
facilitates the Group's ability to conduct thorough performance reviews
and evaluations to enhance its overall performance results in the future.
The Reporting Year coincides with the Group’s financial year.

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report makes relevant disclosures in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) and complies with the “Comply or Explain” provision therein.
The ESG Report summarises the Group's ESG performance during
the Reporting Year with respect to environmental protection, emission
reduction, workplace safety, employee training and drills, supply chain
management and community investment and engagement, and
specifies comparative data for the financial year ended 30 June 2022
("FY2021/22"). The Group focuses on certain aspects closely relevant
to its shareholders and other stakeholders, with full commitment to the
sustainable development of the Group as a whole. Unless otherwise
stated, the calculations of relevant key performance indicators (‘KPIs”)
reference “How to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” and “How to prepare an ESG Report
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” published by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The present scope of the ESG Report covers the principal operating
activities of the Group’s manufacturing and sales of printing products
that are operating in the PRC and Hong Kong. FY2022/23 has been
a transitional year for the Group as it begins to shift its production
operations from Shenzhen to Huizhou. The Group’s Huizhou factory
commenced production at the end of 2022, while its Shenzhen factory
has been phased out from April to May 2023. Therefore, the ESG
Report for FY2022/23 included data from both factories. The Group
considers the operation of the Hong Kong office immaterial to the
Group’s environmental performance, and hence the related data had
been excluded from the current ESG Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD (con
Scope of the Report (Continued)

The Group would like to achieve the following goals in setting ESG
policies:

1. To minimise the burden on the environment
2. To identify and prioritise environmental and social issues
3. To foster an innovative culture

4, To respond to major crises and market changes in a timely
manner

5. To safeguard human rights and social culture

6. To actively engage stakeholders in the decision-making process
7. To nurture and empower the Group’s employees

8. To support the local community

Reporting Principles

The ESG Report adheres to the Reporting Principles set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide, including materiality, quantitative and consistency. The
detalls are illustrated as follows:

Materiality

The content of the ESG Report is determined based on stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. The Group has identified
ESG-related issues, gathered and reviewed opinions from internal
management and various stakeholders, assessed the relevance and
materiality of the issues and prepared and validated the information in
the ESG Report. The ESG Report provides comprehensive coverage of
the key ESG issues of concemn to the Group’s stakeholders.

Quantitative

The disclosures of ESG KPlIs in the ESG Report are supported by
quantitative data and measurable standards. All applicable statistics,
calculation tools, methodologies, reference materials and sources of
conversion factors used are disclosed when presenting the emission
data.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERBE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD (con
Reporting Principles (Continued)

Consistency

To facilitate the comparison of ESG performance between years, the
Group uses consistent reporting and calculation methods as far as is
reasonable and detalils the significant changes in methodologies in the
relevant sections. The intensities in the ESG Report were calculated per
hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of revenue.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively strives to better understand and engage its
stakeholders to ensure continuous improvements. The Group
strongly believes that its stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining
the success of its business in this challenging market. The Group
regularly assesses and determines its ESG risks and ensures that the
relevant risk management measures and internal control systems are
operating effectively. The Group’s communication channels with its
major stakeholders and their respective expectations and concerns are
summarised as follows:

Major stakeholders

Expectations and concerns

EERFEHE @)

W|ERR ()

— B

RYELEEFELRE  HEREARR A

SERAEBR MERERZRE RTET A
YHALENEEED 2ETHRZERE
B RNRE HEREERET  BENEEST
BATWEE -

BRI ZHEEE

AEBBBRHANRATHENSHEELEY
/%@xmb ’ ﬁ%SJZHy\ #—fﬁ*iﬁi $§E<.E;'f§ ! E{
B FEmPE BN TR IR - MR E AP 4 5
%%ﬂ%@ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁm%@§%§£°$%@
THHRETRR g RERAR - BIRE
@@@%@%W&Wﬁ%ﬂ§wy=&ﬁﬂmL
T AEHEETZNEAFEENBRREENR

/

WEZAMEALHEI M NT

Communication channels

FERNBMEBEE HAZEERER BERE
Governments and regulatory e Compliance with laws and regulations e Regular declarations
authorities o Fulfil tax obligations e Onsite inspections

e | aws and regulations
T R BE B AR A o BPEMEER o TEEARRER

o BIIMBAEME

e Bitind
o EKRER

Shareholders and investors e Return on investment e Shareholders’ meetings
e (Good corporate governance system e |nterim and annual reports
e Transparency and disclosure of corporate  ® Announcements
information e (Official company website
e Sustainability strategies and development e Fmails
AR G EE o X E IR o IREREHE
e RIFMNTEEIRRS o MHIRFEWME
s REEEMERELKE o N
o AIRFERRUBLER o NEIE AL
o BIP
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS (continued) RN F=EEE 2
Major stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication channels

FTENSBHEBE M EER BERE

Employees

Labour rights
Compensation and benefits
Career development

Health and workplace safety

Workers' Union
Employee activities
Performance appraisals
Employees handbook
Training and drills

8T BTk Ig
FBRER BTEH
FEER BREZ
REEBELS BIFM
AR B R
Customers High-quality products and services Business visits
Timely delivery Emails, phone calls and
Reasonable prices communication apps
Service value Customer satisfaction surveys
Labour protection and work safety
S BEERERS [EEiE=5]
REZE BFEMY  EFEMBAEARER
HIRERE EFEmMEERAE
RRIS(EE
BIRERTIERR
Suppliers Payment schedule Business visits
Stable demand Emails, phone calls and
communication apps
Supplier performance evaluations
HER NEASIEES [EEvE=H]
IREMFE K BT EEOEAMERER
HER R AL
Communities Environmental protection Official company website
Community contribution Community engagement
Economic development Employee voluntary activities
*EE IRIRIRE NSk b
tEFR ftEmem
KR BI&IES
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Year, the Group conducted a materiality
assessment exercise to identify the most important ESG issues for
its business. This involved conducting surveys with both internal and
external stakeholders to better understand their concerns about ESG & @ M BB HHFIRE - L@ RERZBHA
issues, in which stakeholders were invited to review the importance of ~SBEEBHEZ Y - LEESERBESAEEN
emerging ESG issues to the Group’s businesses. The Group believes — IR3E - H @ REAZE - AEBRATR T
BAEMNERBIEMEAATENZE@AEMEE
E’]%Eiﬁ”"‘fﬁtﬁ?ﬁ R SRMMERE  dE

REBRBEF EEENBHERK MY A
ERAVEEBR B -

BRI

REBRBEFECETEBETE - HMHF
HRMOEBMEBREENRY L EREA
B HEEEAHRIMERSIENEETH R

that input from various stakeholders allows it to better review and
prioritise issues in relation to the stakeholders’ concems, such that its
ESG strategies can better align with stakeholder expectations and its
commitment to sustainable development.

BEERMAEBERE

FEARRE R EIRS MR RERERY
AEEEBNBEMN - MED = SHT - 2F
MABE  HEREGHE  WRBERETH

Materiality Assessment Process

Stakeholders have been invited to review the importance of emerging
ESG issues to the Group’s business, and the assessment has been
conducted in three steps: identification of ESG issues, prioritisation of

questionnaire results and validation of ESG issues.

e Reviewed and adopted \

\

Identification

E %3]

emerging ESG issues;
BE RERAIRE '
MERERE
Invited internal and external
stakeholders to rate the
importance of ESG topics
in relation to the Group's
business in the form of a
questionnaire.
R N ED R SR A 2 A
HEUARHST R EAEEE
BHEBANERE e RkE
AmENEENE -

Fr i AR BpeE

Prioritisation

BrF

* The gquestionnaire results \

were consolidated, analysed
and assessed to identify a
prioritised list of potential
material issues;

BEAHSHER  REMNE

HEAZENEBRAREER
I B el

A materiality matrix

was formulated to plot

the ratings based on

their importance to the
sustainable development of
the Group and influence on
stakeholders’ assessments
and decisions.

il 7E 5 2 1 40 fE AR R
EREH AN EE A FHEE
JR I 9 Al 2 AR B 2 AT A K
IRERFEBNEZMEHT
& o

/

TIRIE -

N

e kERE-E -

Validation
BE

The prioritised list of materiah
ESG issues was presented
to the Board for discussion
and validation.

ERRE  HERERR

%E’J{E?/’Z%EE}E &%
SHEITH W M ERE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (contir
Identifying the material ESG topics
The Group has invited both interal and external stakeholders, such
as the management, employees, customers and suppliers, to provide
feedback in the form of a survey on ESG topics relevant to the nature of
the Group’s operations. The survey covers three main areas conceming
environmental, social and operating issues, with 27 related topics in
total. With reference to the reporting scope, the considerations of the
business characteristics of the Group, as well as the results gathered
from various stakeholders, all responses from both stakeholder groups
were weighted equally, and the material topics identified were analysed
and formulated into a materiality matrix.

Prioritisation and Materiality Matrix

With reference to the materiality matrix, the top right corner of the
matrix presents the most material topics that are related to the Group’s
operations. The most material topics were “customer satisfaction”,
“environmental compliance”, “forest damage caused by improper
logging”, “preventative measures for child and forced labour” and
“talent attraction and retention”. As the Group’s business involves
providing printing services focused on paper-related printing products,
it emphasises the use of responsibly sourced forest products,
such as paper materials, to ensure that the environmental impact
of improper logging is avoided in its operations. On the other hand,
ensuring occupational health and safety and meeting the training and
development needs of employees are also cornerstones of the Group's
success.

The Group is committed to continuously prioritising ESG issues
identified through materiality assessments to better direct its
resources where they are most needed and in ways that strategically
support its business development plans. In addition to disclosing
relevant information in the ESG Report, the Group maintains close
communication with its stakeholders to ensure timely responses to
all concerns and comments. In the future, the Group is committed
to maintaining continuous communication with various stakeholders
so that it can conduct substantive analysis based on the collected
feedback if necessary. At the same time, the Group will also ensure
that the focus of ESG issues is reviewed from time to time to clearly
define and identify the importance of the ESG issues of interest so
that it can better prepare and provide appropriate information for future
ESG reports to better align with the interests and expectations of its
stakeholders.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continueq) BEEMTME @)
Prioritisation and Materiality Matrix (Continued) BARFREEMERE &)
High o .
= Materiality Matrix
EEMEME S
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Low Impact on the Group’s Sustainable Development High
15 HAEBTRHERRATE =

Operating issues

FBHE

20..Supply chain management
HpEgEE IR

21. Customer satisfaction
BEEMERE

22. Customer privacy
LS N

23. Product quality and safety
EREEREE

24, Economic performance
BRI

25. Operational compliance
EEAR

26. Corporate governance
hEER

27. Anti-corruption
R&EF
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BOARD STATEMENT

The Group is fully aware of the importance of efficient ESG governance
to corporate sustainability development. The Group has established an
ESG management framework with clear demarcation of responsibilities
between different levels within the governance structure to ensure
the effective implementation of the ESG governance policy in its
operations. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group
assumes primary responsibility for the supervision of the Group’s
ESG governance, including determining the Group's ESG approach,
understanding and controlling ESG-related risks and supervising and
leading the management and relevant departments in the formulation
and implementation of relevant policies and measures. Through the
adoption of a “top-down” management approach, the Group is able
to facilitate effective communication among all working units and allow
policymakers to better understand day-to-day operations and practical
experiences so that appropriate plans and strategies can be formulated.

The Board is responsible for:
o assessing and determining the Group’s ESG risks;
° ensuring the establishment of appropriate and effective ESG risk

management and internal control systems;

o developing ESG strategies, action plans and objectives;

o monitoring the progress and performance of ESG initiatives; and

° reviewing and approving annual ESG reports.

The management is responsible for:

° reporting ESG-related risks and opportunities to the Board;

° providing guidance on the implementation of ESG policies and

measures;

o arranging work in accordance with the ESG strategies, action
plans and objectives formulated by the Board;

° reporting to the Board on the progress and performance of ESG
work; and

o reviewing and submitting annual ESG reports to the Board for
approval.
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BOARD STATEMENT

The functional departments are responsible

for:

° coordinating and implementing specific ESG policies and
measures;

. reporting to the management on ESG work;

o collecting information and data in relation to the ESG performance
of the Group; and

. preparing annual ESG reports and reporting to the management.

The members of the Board possess the appropriate skills, experience,
knowledge and perspectives necessary to oversee the Group’'s ESG
matters. The Board must hold at least one meeting each year to
establish the overall ESG approach, oversee and assess the potential
impacts and risks of the ESG issues related to the Group’s operation,
review the Group’s performance against ESG-related targets and the
materiality of ESG issues, ensure the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and approve disclosures
in ESG reports. The Board will continue to oversee the ESG-related
work and keep abreast of the latest ESG disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Board also ensures that all
departments work closely to achieve operational compliance and
shoulder social responsibility. The management reports to the Board at
least once a year and assists the Board in fulfiling its responsibilities.
Moving forward, the Group will develop ESG objectives and targets that
are more fitting for the Group as much as possible to achieve better
ESG performance and better meet the expectations of its stakeholders.

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL

Climate change remains one of the key environmental topics in
contemporary society. In order to effectively address the series of
challenges brought about by climate change, the PRC government
officially announced that Mainland China has been striving for domestic
contributions by taking stronger policy measures to achieve the
goals of Carbon Peaking by 2030 and Carbon Neutrality by 2060.
In order to actively respond to the national strategic goals and meet
the requirements of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, the Group strives to
promote sustainable development, actively contribute to addressing the
challenges of change and promote the philosophy of green and low-
carbon development.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (cContinued)
Sustainability is regarded as the comerstone of the Group’s corporate
culture, so it is crucial to incorporate environmental and socio-
economic considerations into its decision-making processes. Based on
national and local laws and regulations, as well as referenced against
the ISO 14001 environmental management system according to the
Group's operating environment, structure, production capacity and
human resources, the Group has formulated a unique environmental
management system along with corresponding regulations and
guidelines for pollutant management, such that the waste gases,
sewage, noise and different types of solid waste generated in the
operation and production process can be better managed. The Group
adheres to the enterprise culture that focuses on environment protection
and energy conservation, with the aim of setting up a comprehensive
internal environmental management system to monitor, manage and
dispose of various pollutants generated from the operations of its plants
and offices and strictly complying with the standards and requirements
of the local government.

The Group has formulated the 1ISO9001 Quality Management
Handbook and Social Responsibility Management Handbook, which
stipulate the pollutant discharge standards that it strictly abides by. The
Group performs regular compliance reviews to ensure that no non-
compliance incidents have occurred in its operations.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that would have
a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Besides, the Board had developed the FY2022/23 environmental — Itboh

targets for various emissions from the PRC operation. The details were i

as follows:

Aspect
EBE

Target
BE

Ao RIBEEME (&)

FRARPEEE SEFRETIT =%
SSHERRAE - HERIIMT -

Progress

piskd

Air and GHG emissions

B R BB E R AR BN

Hazardous waste

BEERD

Non-hazardous waste

Continue to monitor both the Group’s
air and GHG emissions levels, formulate
environmentally friendly measures to
alleviate the Group's environmental impact,
keep a close eye on the performance
of the Group’s factories and Hong Kong
office and take practicable steps to make
improvements and reduce corresponding
carbon emissions in the future.

HEERAEENERAEREHER
IR TR R AR TR i DA RS AN 5 [ IR
RHRE BOBIAEEIREES
PWREWER - WIRRY)E A 1780 F5 b
TeE FOR D R ARAR TR AN

Continue to strictly implement hazardous
waste management measures and
ensure proper storage to prevent major
contamination situations.

REBRANTATERMEREE &
Z#TF  DIIEERTREM

Continue enforcing the idea of resource
efficiency and avoiding material waste
among employees in addition to the Group’s
waste management measures to effectively
manage and strive to lower the Group'’s
non-hazardous waste production in the
future.

BRTASERNEEMERERN &
B T 2 MH#HITE RS K 2 E R
EMES - WBERERI BRI
EREERRBEREEY) -

The Group has continued to monitor
emission data related to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, as well as
obtained ISO 14001 certification. The
Group has achieved its target.

AEEFBEEZEERMREREH
AR R HE I BUE - S ER{SISO 14001
R - REBDEREBER -

The Group has continued to implement
its hazardous waste management
measures and ensured that the produced
hazardous waste was sent to a qualified
third party for treatment. The Group has
achieved its target.
REERELZEAEREDERR
i BREENESEEMEZE?
BE=ZFUMERE - REEBEKHE
BiEo

The Group has educated its employees
on resource efficiency and avoiding
material waste, as well as continued to
implements its non-hazardous waste
management measures. The Group has
achieved its target.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions

Air Emissions

The Group always complies with the applicable provisions of the
national and local laws, regulations and standards of the operating
locations, establishes related internal policies and procedures,
demands that its employees strictly follow the operating procedures of
the production equipment and environmental protection equipment and
provides suitable labour supplies to its employees so as to effectively
control and manage the emission of air pollutants and reduce their
environmental and health impacts.

The Group’s air pollutants, including nitrogen oxides (“NO,”), sulphur
oxides (“SO,”), respiratory suspended particles (“RSP”) and volatile
organic compounds (“VOCs"), are mainly generated from the usage
of gasoline and diesel oil in automobiles. During the Reporting Year,
the Group’s air emissions were approximately 1,792 kg (FY2021/22:
approximately 1,036 kg) and the corresponding intensity’ was
approximately 0.34 kg/HK$'00,000 (FY2021/22: approximately 0.16
kg/HK$'00,000) of revenue. The Group's total air emissions and air
emission intensity have increased significantly due to a decrease in
revenue and the additional disclosure of VOCs under the Group'’s
enhanced data collection mechanism. The composition of the Group’s
air emissions is illustrated below:

Air Emissions

(in kg)
mARHER
Y
(BaFsh)
W Fy2022/23 FY2021/22
B =B kel et
1,200
1,019
1,000 965
800
699
600
400
200
N/A 78 70
5 1 1 ~ER
NO, SO, VOCs RSP
A&lm maltky BEEERIEAY ATRA
BIFRLT

! During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$534.4 million (FY2021/22: approximately HK$657.7 milion). The data
is also used for calculating other intensity data.
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/Air Emission Intensity
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (coni
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

In order to reduce air and greenhouse gas emissions and to better
manage fuel usage for business and non-business purposes, the
Group has adopted a number of conservation measures. For example,
the Group prioritises small-displacement, economical vehicles when
purchasing new vehicles and the usage of gasoline vehicles over
diesel vehicles to reduce emissions and fuel consumption. Moreover,
drivers must also plan the route in advance to minimise travel distance.
The Group requires its drivers to stop idle vehicles’ engines to reduce
unnecessary fuel consumption. The Group also actively advocates the
environmental concept of “Green Travel” and encourages employees
to take public transportation, ride bicycles, or walk to work instead of
driving private vehicles to reduce fuel consumption and exhaust air
emissions as much as possible.

To reduce the VOCs generated from the Group’s production process,
it has installed ultraviolet photolysis waste gas treatment equipment
at each outlet, capable of removing 90% of the VOC pollutants from
the exhaust gas. While the Group actively researches and develops
new raw materials and technologies, it also integrates environmental
protection considerations into its production processes, which provides
a variety of solutions for its customers and further reduces the adverse
impacts of its operations on the environment. Additionally, the Group
has also installed an online VOC monitoring device at one of the
discharge outlets at its Shenzhen factory. The local environmental
protection department can monitor the VOC data of the plant at any
time through the information release platform.

The Group regularly entrusts third-party professional inspection
agencies to test the pollutants at each discharge outlet in the factory
and the ambient air around the plant in accordance with the emission
standards and methods of the local environmental protection
government departments. This is to prevent any unnoticed excessive
emissions, which could lead to non-compliance with the local emission
standards, and to protect local air quality. During the Reporting Year, the
test results were in compliance with the national Emission standard of
air pollutants for printing industry.

Going forward, the Group will conduct regular inspections and
maintenance of its vehicles to ensure their energy efficiency and
educate employees about fuel conservation concepts, while continuing
to keep proper records and monitor its air emissions to cut down future
air emissions as much as possible.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

GHGs are compound gases that trap heat in the atmosphere, and they
are highly responsible for accelerating the greenhouse effect. Since the
anthropogenic burning of fossil fuels from development has put a large
amount of GHGs into the atmosphere, the global warming process has
been sped up and is contributing to climate change. In accordance
with *Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” from the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, GHG emissions can be classified into
three scopes:

Scope 1 Direct emissions from operations that are owned or
controlled by the company.

Scope 2 “Energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation
of purchased or acquired electricity, heating, cooling and
steam consumed within the company.

Scope 3 All other indirect emissions that occur outside the company,

including both upstream and downstream emissions.

As GHG emissions are the main drivers of global warming, the
Group has adopted various green practices in its daily operations to
demonstrate its commitment to environmental conservation, natural
resource preservation and waste reduction by reducing its GHG
emissions.

The Group’'s GHG emissions can be mainly attributed to fossil fuel
consumption from vehicles and the use of refrigerants (Scope 1),
the consumption of purchased electricity (Scope 2), the disposal of
paper waste at landfills, electricity used for fresh water and sewage
processing by the responsible authorized government departments and
downstream transportation and distribution (Scope 3).
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s PRC factories produced
approximately 5,845 tCO,e of GHG emissions (FY2021/22:
approximately 4,633 t1CO,e) and the corresponding intensity was
approximately 1.09 tCO,e/HK$' 00,000 (FY2021/22: approximately
0.69 tCO,e/HK$'00,000) of revenue. The CGroup’s total GHG emissions
and GHG emission intensity have increased by approximately 29% and
58% respectively due to a decrease in revenue and the inclusion of the
new Huizhou factory.

A percentage breakdown of the respective GHG emissions by scope
is presented in the following charts, while the emission data® from each
source of the three scopes is shown in the table below:

GHG Emissions by Scope
FY2022/23
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Eﬁi‘lﬁﬂg/ smsam
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#[E1 #E2 #E3
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

RE  HERERBE

Ao RIBEEME &)
BEA1 : By (&)
BERE (BEERED HEW (2)

Scope Emission Sources Unit FY2022/23 Fy2021/22
—=E=-= -T2/
&= BERRRR B —=BE —WE
1 Fossil Fuel Consumption tCO,e 126 151
LR BREHEFE ﬂ@*%k KEE
Use of Refrigerants tCOe 11 43
S REL A tm—%kﬁéi
Total Scope 1 Emissions tCOe 137 194
HE 1B s B —EiREE
2 Electricity Consumption tCO,e 5,647 4,294
JHFE BW_SRE=
Total Scope 2 Emissions tCOe 5,647 4,294
HE2 B tm—%kxéé
3 Water and Sewage Processing tCO,e 56 44
HK F K BRI ﬁ%*%m REE
Downstream Transportation and Distribution tCOe 4.64 1.12
ThriE R Mo i BE_EtiREE
Total Scope 3 Emissions tCOe 61 45
HEHRRE i%‘%kx%%
Total GHG Emissions tCO.e 5,845 4,533
BERBHHEE BH-_F{REE
GHG Emission Intensity tC0,e/HK$’00,000 1.09 0.69
EHM_StREE
BERBEREE TEBER
2 GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent 2 BAEREBHEREBEU-—SREENEAZY) -

and is based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” and the “Technical
Guidance for Calculating Scope 3 Emissions” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the
“Global Warming Potential Values” from the Fifth Assessment Report
(ARDB) of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), 2014,
the “GHG Emission Factors Hub (September 2023)” published by the
United States Environmental Protection Agency and the “Notice on the
Management of Enterprise Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting of
Power Generation Enterprises for 2023-2025" published by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.
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R dHERERHE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

Given the harmful impacts of GHG emissions on the environment,
the Group is committed to minimising the respective emissions from
its operations as much as possible. While promoting the virtues of
environmental consciousness among the Group's employees, they
are also encouraged to practise resource conservation to contribute to
environmental protection together with the Group. The Group embraces
green driving practices in its day-to-day operations and demonstrates
its commitment to environmental conservation, natural resource
conservation and waste reduction by implementing the following

practices:

Ensure Energy
Efficiency

Reduce Waste
Production

Limit Unnecessary
Resource
Consumption

Conduct regular inspections and
maintenance for vehicles and production
facilities

Clean the filters of air conditioners to
minimise clogged filters and ensure
equipment efficiency

Phase out obsolete equipment to ensure
energy efficiency and avoid wasting
electricity

Re-use paper in the Group’s production
cycles

Engage external service provider to collect
wastepaper for recycling

Limit the use of artificial lights whenever
possible

Maximize the potential of using natural light
Switch off electrical appliances after work
hours

Restrict the use of air conditioners
according to temperature and seasonal
changes
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Emission Target

In order to reduce its air and GHG emissions, the Group has set a
target to gradually reduce its air emissions intensity (kg/HK$'00,000),
install solar panels and maintain its ISO 14001 -certified status by the
financial year ended 30 June 2028 ("FY2027/28").

Hazardous Waste Management

In compliance with the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste
and other applicable environmental laws and regulations of the local
government, the Group has formulated the Environmental Management
Operation and Monitoring Control Procedures to manage and monitor
the process of solid waste collection, storage and disposal, as well as
the adequacy and conditions of the physical storage facilities.

The operation of the Group mainly generates a number of hazardous
solid wastes during its operation, including mixed waste oil, waste
ink, printing plate washing wastewater, developing waste liquid,
waste fluorescent tubes, waste rags, waste gloves, wastewater
treatment sludge, etc. During the Reporting Year, the Group
recorded approximately 18 tonnes of hazardous waste (FY2021/22:
approximately 13 tonnes) and the corresponding intensity was
approximately 0.003 tonnes/HK$'00,000 (FY2021/22: approximately
0.002 tonnes/HK$'00,000) of revenue. The Group's total hazardous
waste disposal and hazardous waste disposal intensity have increased
by approximately 38% and 50% respectively due to a decrease in
revenue, changes in production volume and the inclusion of the new
Huizhou factory.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

The Group follows the local laws and regulations to set up a temporary
storage warehouse for hazardous wastes and take anti-scattering and
anti-leakage measures to prevent any environmental pollution events.
All hazardous wastes generated are stored in designated areas in the
factory, and illegal dumping is strictly forbidden. Although the Group
cannot significantly reduce the hazardous waste generated during its
production process due to the nature and limitations of its industry, it
encourages employees to fully utilise its production resources to lower
unnecessary consumption. The containers loaded with hazardous
solid waste have been labelled and stored in designated locations by
category. Each factory regularly inspects the storage area of hazardous
solid wastes and takes appropriate measures upon discovery of any
leakages or safety hazards to prevent secondary pollution. All hazardous
solid waste is collected and disposed of by licensed external service
providers to ensure safe disposal and minimise adverse environmental
impacts. Meanwnhile, the Internal Audit Department closely monitors
the disposal levels of all waste, including both hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, to stay vigilant against unregulated waste disposal
and potential hazards. The wastewater and ink produced during the
production process may have an adverse impact on the environment.
To avoid potential adverse environmental impacts, the Group has
installed a No Rinse computer-to-plate (“CTP") sewage treatment
system since November 2021, which can effectively minimise the
hazardous substances produced during the production process. On
top of that, the Group has installed two sets of wastewater recycling
facilities in the treatment system so that the facilities are able to recycle
the treated wastewater back into the production process for further
usage. The Group also engaged a third-party inspection company to
perform the acceptance procedure on behalf of the Group over the set-
up and function of the sewage treatment facilities.

Hazardous Waste Target

As mentioned above, since hazardous waste production is inevitable
in our production process and is highly dependent on the business
performance and production activities of the Group, its hazardous
waste output may fluctuate in response to changes in its business
performance. Nonetheless, the Group aims to continue to strictly
implement the above measures and ensure proper storage to prevent
major contamination situations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (coni
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)
Non-Hazardous Waste Management

The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group was mainly

attributable to the excessive materials generated during the production
process, including paper, packaging ribbon, metal and plastic waste
and residential waste generated from our dally lives.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded approximately
2,649 tonnes of non-hazardous waste (FY2021/22: approximately
3,236 tonnes) and the corresponding intensity was approximately
0.50 tonnes/HK$'00,000 (FY2021/22: approximately 0.49 tonnes/
HK$'00,000) of revenue. The Group's total non-hazardous waste
disposal and non-hazardous waste disposal intensity decreased by
approximately 18% and increased by approximately 2% respectively
due to a decrease in revenue and changes in production volume.
About 96% (FY2021/22: about 98%) were recycled by external service
providers, and only about 4% (FY2021/22: about 2%) were disposed of
directly at landfills.

In order to reduce the production of non-hazardous waste, the Group
upholds the 3R principles, namely reduce, reuse and recycle. For
example, excessive materials are either reused in the next production
cycle or collected and recycled by an external service provider for other
purposes. In addition, the Group also attempts to make an accurate
estimation of the use of raw materials in its production process before
placing purchase orders to reduce unnecessary consumption. All
waste generated during the Group production processes is recycled
by recyclers with recycling technology, which can further reduce the
pressure on the environment caused by waste landfills. During the
Reporting Year, all paper waste was sent to an external service provider
for recycling.

To effectively manage non-hazardous waste production, the Group
strictly follows the requirements of the local governments of each
operating location to classify the waste from business operations and
living purposes into different waste categories, such as recyclable
waste, kitchen waste and other waste.

Operational waste, such as paper scraps, is collected separately
and regularly handed over to third-party extemnal service providers for
recycling. Other waste, such as living waste, is also regularly collected
and handed over to the local sanitation department for recycling,
landfiling or incineration.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Non-Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

Apart from that, the Group implemented the following waste reduction
measures in the office to reduce the environmental impact of the
Group’s operations at all levels:

o Educate employees and implement policies for reducing,
recycling and harmless disposal of office and domestic waste;

° Set up microwaves in the office and encourage employees to
bring their own lunch and reduce ordering takeaway food;

o Reduce the use of disposable consumables, such as food
packaging boxes, paper cups, paper plates, plastic bags, etc.;

° Encourage employees to reuse wastepaper or stationery, such
as single-sided printed paper, envelopes, folders, etc.; and

o Encourage employees to use electronic communication as much
as possible and promote a paperless work environment.

Non-Hazardous Waste Target

Like hazardous waste, the Group’s non-hazardous waste production is
highly subjected to its business performance and production activities
and fluctuations in non-hazardous waste output may arise in response
to changes in its business performance. Notwithstanding, the Group
has set a target to reduce its non-hazardous waste disposal intensity
(tonnes/HK$'00,000) by 3% by FY2027/28, using FY2022/23 as the
baseline year.

Wastewater Discharge

Wastewater is produced from production processes and daily life.
The production wastewater was reused through the Group’s sewage
treatment system while wastewater for other purposes were discharged
into the municipal sewage treatment system, therefore the amount of
water consumed by the Group is considered as the amount of sewage
discharged. The corresponding water conservation measures are
described in the section headed “Water Consumption”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources

In order to comply with the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Water Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other applicable laws, regulations and policies, along with establishing
conservation ideas and promoting the culture of conservation, the
Group has tabled a number of measures and held themed trainings
on environmental protection from time to time to promote energy
conservation. The Group has also established the Environmental
Management Operation and Monitoring Control Procedures to facilitate
the effective utilization of resources, such as electricity and water. The
Group ensures that every employee understands the impact of their
behaviour on the environment and requires them to make the best use
of resources to maximise resource efficiency and avoid waste.
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R dHERERHE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Aspect
BmE

Target
BE

AR D

CIRIBEMR (&)
EBEA2 : ERER (&)

Progress
BnE

Energy

Water

7K

Continue to actively implement resource
saving plans and measures while also
looking to further the Group's current
practices, aiming to raise the overall
efficiency of resource consumption, avoid
unnecessary wastage as much as possible,
upgrade machinery and equipment as
needed and keep better records of its
performance.
HEEGRERHNERTEIREE R
RE—FPEEREENRTME §E
RERERERNERYEE REHRT
VERE FTEREMHIRE B
EECEE -

Continue to actively implement water-
saving initiatives and measures, monitor
the Group’s water consumption level and
reinforce promotion and education towards
water conservation.
HEBRGEEEKEERER - BERIER
SEAKE - MREKEEHE -

The Group is currently in the process
of replacing all lighting with LEDs, and
reducing energy consumption is one of
the Group'’s key considerations when
purchasing machinery and equipment.
The Group has achieved its target.

AEE BRI EAERAERAREER
RBLED - RERERBR R A REREK
ERRERNIBEEEZ — AEE
EEREBR -

The Group has monitored its water
consumption level, as well as educated
and encouraged its employees to
conserve water. The Group has achieved
its target.

REBEZRAKE  UHEREBHE
TERAK - REEBEZEREBIR -

SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% £ 1282 5 R 24 = / Annual Report & 3745 2022 / 2023
54 p



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)
Electricity Consumption

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total electricity consumption
was approximately 9,901 MWh (FY2021/22. approximately 7,390
MWh) and the corresponding intensity was approximately 1.85 MWh/
HK$'00,000 (FY2021/22: approximately 1.12 MWh/HK$'00,000)
of revenue. The Group’s total electricity consumption and electricity
consumption intensity increased by approximately 34% and 65%
respectively due to a decrease in revenue and the inclusion of the new
Huizhou factory.

Electricity Consumption

EhHiERE
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To reduce the energy consumption in both its offices and factories,
the Group actively adopts different kinds of technically feasible and
economically reasonable measures, such as encouraging employees
to use natural light for daily operations, restricting the use of air
conditioners according to seasonal and temperature changes, regularly
cleaning air conditioner filters, turning off unnecessary electrical
equipment after work, phasing out old equipment, using nationally
recognised equipment or equipment with energy-efficient labels,
focusing on the repair and maintenance or retrofitting of electrical
equipment, etc.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Fuel Consumption

The Group's fuel consumption can be mainly attributed to gasoline and
diesel consumption for business travel and goods delivery. During the
Reporting Year, the Group consumed approximately 6,385 L of gasoline
(FY2021/22: approximately 7,252 L) and approximately 41,403 L of
diesel (FY2021/22: approximately 49,811 L). The Group'’s gasoline
and diesel consumption decreased by approximately 12% and 17%
respectively due to the use of higher quality fuel. To maintain a good
record of the Group's fuel consumption, the Administration Department
records the fuel consumption of each vehicle and performs analysis
to identify any abnormal vehicle usage. Upon identification of any
abnormalities, follow-up actions would be taken to avoid inefficiencies
that lead to extra operational expenses.

Energy Consumption Summary and Targets
The table below summarises the energy consumption sources of the
Group:
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S B 4949811 AF) o REBFEER
RH KRR D B A8 12% K 1T% YRR ERE
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B TP IR S TR E MR ERITETS
o UEAEREEEABERER - NEREM
BEBER BERERETE  BeRERET
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BEREEMEREE
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Energy Consumption Sources Unit?® FY2022/23 Fy2021/22
—E-= —Eg2=-—/

BEIRUH FERIR By —=BF o 2

Direct Energy Consumption MWh 505 603

HERREHE KL

Diesel Qil MWh 443 533

5o K LB

Gasoline MWh 62 70

v LB

Indirect Energy Consumption MWh 9,901 7,390

SEZEEYVCE =2 IR FLEF

Purchased Electricity MWh 9,901 7,390

FiEEE KRB

Total Energy Consumption MWh 10,406 7,993

BERHERE JK B

Energy Consumption Intensity MWh/HK$'00,000 1.95 1.22

BEIREREE R KER+EET

8 The unit conversion method for energy consumption data is formulated s BEREEBBMNEMRE EDRIEREERERE

based on the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International FrEsh 2 CReREUEF M) mslaT o
Energy Agency.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Energy Consumption Summary and Targets (Continued)

In order to reduce its energy consumption, the Group has set a target
to replace all light fixtures in its offices and factories with LEDs by
FY2027/28.

Water Consumption

During the Reporting Year, although the Group did not encounter any
issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, it still shoulders the
responsibility of environmental protection and sustainable development
and strives to raise the utilisation rate of water resources while reducing
environmental pressure. During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total
water consumption was approximately 86,979 m® (FY2021/22:
approximately 76,854 m®) and the corresponding intensity was
approximately 16.28 m*/HK$'00,000 (FY2021/22: approximately 11.68
m%/HK$'00,000) of revenue. The Group's total water consumption and
water consumption intensity increased by approximately 13% and 39%
respectively due to a decrease in revenue and the inclusion of the new
Huizhou factory.

Water Consumption
(in m3)
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Water Consumption (Continued)

While printing is traditionally considered a water-intensive industry, the
Group always encourages reducing unnecessary water consumption.,
The Group has adopted a forward-looking strategy and purchased
new machines with waterless printing technology to reduce its water
consumption, which is highly dependent on the Group’s production
volume and customers’ demands. To minimise its water consumption,
the Group strengthens the repair and maintenance of water equipment,
pipes, valves, etc., and regularly records and analyses the water
consumption level of each water usage point in the factories. Moreover,
the Group has installed wastewater recycling facilities in its sewage
treatment station in order to reduce water consumption during
production.

Water Consumption Target

As aforementioned, since the Group's water consumption is highly
subject to sales volume and customer demand, the Group's direct
influence over its water consumption is limited. Nonetheless, the Group
has set a target to decrease its water consumption intensity (m®/
HK$'00,000) by 3% by FY2027/28, using FY2022/23 as the baseline
year.

Packaging Material

Due to the nature of the printing industry and its business, the Group
did not collect the data with regard to packaging materials separately,
as they share the same raw materials as its products. Nevertheless, as
mentioned in the “Non-Hazardous Waste Management” section above,
the Group will prevent unnecessary consumption through accurate
estimation of raw materials needed before placing purchase orders. As
for the excess materials, some of them will be reused in the Group’s
production cycles, while the rest will be collected by an external service
provider for recycling purposes.

A7  REEMHE &)

EBEA2: ERER &)

FAkHE (&)

AR EN T 2 2R B FEK B A - AN 8 B g
EREER D BB o AEECIRAATIE M
Frss - I E B mOKEN R R e 3T 28 A 5
Ak HERARE I ATAEENEENESE
KT - BRERD K AEBMBRAE RAK
RS oK B RS - FIF T BR8N 5 TR
ZRKIBEF MRS o HAN - ANEEDERIFK
BRI T R K (B IR 3R+ AR A R FR MO 7K

=
g °

AKHEFERRZ

B iR R AR ASEMAKERESDHEE
EMEPEXREEFE ARASEHAKNE
Z E2RR - \BEWL  AEECHEER B
ER T/ CCHFAEEFR T+
ZN\BHEFEZRRLBIKHEERE LHX/ T8
WBIT) 3% °

R

ERNRITERARBENER LS  AEELE
EBREEEMHNEE AR EEAEKE
BV EE M & AR R B IRA KL o AT - B BT &
EREEWERE] —fml - AEEBBEENTE
REBRIERERMGEATEME - U LT R E
HUHRE - LZBROMEME - B SR A KB
HAEBEMPER - HHRRBIMNERBHER I E
AMETRIRBA -

58 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #7 8 EN 224 iR 2 & / Annual Report £ #§& 2002 / 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper Material Usage

The printing industry has been one of the more controversial industries
that contributes to global warming due to its energy- and water-intensive
nature, as well as being one of the causes of deforestation. While the
Group understands the clauses related to environmental concerns
from paper consumption, paper is a fundamental raw material for its
operations considering the nature of its business in providing printing
services. It is therefore one of the long-standing goals of the Group to
limit potential adverse impacts from improper logging in order to uphold
its environmental commitments. The Group has been encouraging
its customers to use papers from sustainable forestry, such as those
endorsed with the Forest Stewardship Council (‘FSC”) label. The goal of
the FSC system is to reduce the risk that non-certified material used in
the manufacture of products is linked to practices that harm forests and
people. The FSC system also aims to reduce and eventually eliminate
those risks over time by mitigating the problems that underlie these
practices. The source of the materials for the accredited entity must not
come from wood harvested illegally, in violation of traditional and human
rights, from forests in which high conservation values are threatened by
management activities, from forests being converted to plantations or
non-forest uses or from forests in which genetically modified trees are
planted.

Given its advocacy for using sustainably sourced papers, the Group
has obtained the FSC Chain-of-Custody certification since 2010 for
its use of the FSC label on its products. Since then, the Group has
long promoted environmentally friendly concepts to both existing and
potential customers. During the Reporting Year, the Group consumed
approximately 10,116 tonnes (FY2021/22: approximately 14,063
tonnes) of FSC paper and approximately 5,630 tonnes (FY2021/22:
approximately 8,711 tonnes) of non-FSC paper. The Group's FSC
paper and non-FSC paper consumption decreased by approximately
28% and 35% respectively due to changes in production volume.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper Material Usage (Continued)

To mitigate the detrimental impacts of the paper industry and
discourage deforestation from improper logging, the Group will continue
to promote the use of FSC paper to customers.

Paper Material Usage
FY2022/23 (in %)
HAER
B /”=BIE
(Bl %&t)

\

64%

M Fsc Non-FSC
FSC JEFSC

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural
Resources

The production processes in the printing industry primarily generate
VOCs, which are organic chemical gases that contribute to the
formation of ground-level ozone and fine particulates in the atmosphere
and are one of the major pollutants that have adverse effects on the
environment. Although the footprint incurred from the production
process is unavoidable due to the nature of its business, the Group
believes that business development should not come at the expense of
the environment. Therefore, the Group has considered environmental
factors when formulating emission reduction strategies and actively
responded to changes in the government’s environmental policies.
In addition, the Group is constantly looking for ways to optimise the
production processes, using environmentally friendly raw materials to
reduce the negative effects of its business activities on the environment
as much as possible while keeping the highest standards for product
quality as its development direction. Additionally, with its commitment
and efforts in meeting the standards for its operations, the Group
has been accredited with a number of certifications and verifications,
including the FSC Chain-of-Custody certification, the Good
Manufacturing Practice (“GMP") certification, ISO/IEC 17025:2017 and
ISO 14001:2015.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural
Resources (Continued)

The Group has also established the Environmental Management
Operation and Monitoring Control Procedures to monitor the pollution
level during operation to ensure that all emissions fully comply with the
environmental protection laws and regulations. Moreover, the Group
attaches great importance to the development of new materials to
meet the growing demand for products from customers while striving
to reduce the amount of pollution generated. With its well-established
environmental management system and a team of experienced
employees, the Group is eager to achieve its endeavour of transforming
into a sustainable enterprise in the near future.

According to the Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Notice on Deepening the Promotion of Cleaner
Production in Key Enterprises and Shenzhen City Cleaner Production
Audit Implementation Rules, the Group’s Shenzhen factory has passed
the process of the cleaner production audit process, affirming its
continuous efforts in environmental protection.

Noise Management

The noise generated by the Group’'s manufacturing business mainly
comes from the operation of production machinery and equipment.
The Group controls noise levels and its impact on the environment by
restricting the location of the production workshop and the placement of
production equipment and implementing vibration and noise reduction
measures. The Group’s production workshops are constructed with
materials and structures with good sound insulation facilities, and shock
absorbers are also installed under the equipment. To maximise the
equipment life cycle, the Group stresses the repair and maintenance
of machinery and equipment. For instance, Iubricating oil is used to
ensure the Group’s machines can run smoothly and prevent the parts
from becoming worn or broken. Besides, the Group also arranges
appropriate production times and puts emphasis on the greening of the
factory environment, hoping to continuously reduce the impact of noise
on the surrounding community environment through the attenuation of
trees and plants.

The Group strictly implements the noise emission limits set out in the
Emisson standard for industrial enterprises noise at boundary. During
the Reporting Year, the Group’s factories conducted an annual noise
testing inspection, and the results met the standards.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (cContinued)
Aspect A4: Climate Change

Climate change refers to long-term shifts in temperatures and
weather patterns. While it could be a natural phenomenon, human
activities are the major driver of climate change, with increasing GHG
emissions accelerating the greenhouse effect and global warming. The
endothermic nature of heat-trapping gases such as carbon dioxide
in the atmosphere prevents heat from leaking back into space, thus
contributing to climate change. With the accompanying effects of the
warming temperature disrupting the Earth’'s system, it is unmistakable
that climate change is one of the greatest contemporary challenges
to human life and the health of the planet. As the world now moves
towards a lower-carbon and sustainable economy to address climate
change, the Group has begun to take into account the areas and
aspects in which it can contribute to the green endeavour.

The Group acknowledges the potential challenges and impacts of
climate change that could affect its business sustainability, along with
the market trend of transitioning into a lower carbon footprint economy.
In response, incorporating climate considerations into the Group’s
decision-making process is critical for capital allocation, service
development and supply chain management, so that better preparation
and management could be arranged in response to adapting and
managing the potential climate-related uncertainties that may affect the
Group. The Group remains committed to achieving long-term success
and becoming an environmentally responsible corporation while
enhancing its corporate strength.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A4: Climate Change (Continued)

Physical Risks

Some regions in the PRC, including the operating locations of the
Group's factories, are vulnerable to the threat of floods, fires and
tropical cyclones. In terms of the more immediate climate-related risks
posed to the Group’s operation and the safety of its employees, climate
change is likely to introduce a higher frequency and severity of extreme
weather events, endangering employees working at the Group’s offices
and workshops, as well as increasing the risk of property damages,
disruption to the supply chain and logistical functions brought to
the Group. In order to manage the above threats, the Group has
implemented special work arrangements to provide its employees with
guidelines on work arrangements and safety precautions to minimise
potential risks of injury and accidents. The Group has established the
Environmental Emergency Handling Control Procedures and bought
relevant insurance policies to reduce losses from natural disasters. The
Group also arranges emergency drills for employees to better prepare
and familiarise themselves with emergency procedures in the event
of such an incident. Moreover, the Group will also keep abreast of
the latest updates on weather conditions in response to bad weather
events so that appropriate measures can be taken to avoid property
damage and employee injury and to minimise potential disruptions and
losses as much as possible. Besides, the Group actively promotes the
principle of conservation in resource usage among its employees to
reduce the Group's adverse impacts on the environment and on itself.

As temperatures continue to rise, climate change is expected to lead
to changes in the world's resource availability. Since climate change
could alter the frequency and intensity of forest disturbances such as
insect outbreaks, droughts, heatwaves, wildfires and storms, this poses
a potential threat to the Group’s supply due to shrinking forestry from a
changing climate. In response, the Group maintains close cooperative
relationships with suppliers to ensure the supply of raw materials, while
also keeping a list of selected suppliers to further secure the supplies
of conventional materials from multi-sourcing should any unexpected
situations arise. Moreover, the Group has adopted a development
strategy to explore new business opportunities and reduce the usage
of paper materials by diversifying its product portfolio and adding more
technological elements to its products. The Group has introduced a
range of advanced packaging solutions, including variable data printing
(e.g. QR codes and barcodes), RFID packaging for anti-counterfeiting,
and “audio posters” embedded with Bluetooth chips in promotional
items. This enables the Group to start exploring innovative technologies
and developing products that are more sustainable to reduce material
usage as much as possible.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A4: Climate Change (Continued)

Transition Risks

A shift in market preference for sustainability commitment could also
cause reputational damage to the Group if it fails to meet customer
expectations. The Group takes environmental factors into consideration
when selecting suppliers, including whether suppliers meet statutory
environmental standards and whether they have obtained any
environmental certification. These green procurement practices ensure
the Group’s environmental standards are met in the supply chain
management process. Additionally, the Group closely monitors its ESG
performance and actively strives to optimise its development direction
and strategies to ensure that its performance is in line with customer
expectations.

On the other hand, with more climate conferences and environmental
protection-related climate policies expected in the future, as well as the
PRC government's commitment to carbon neutrality by 2060 and other
international climate inftiatives, it is foreseeable that more resources
may be required to meet emerging environmental requirements and
standards. As Mainland China aims to achieve carbon neutrality by
2060, it is possible for the PRC government to launch and implement
carbon pricing mechanisms such as carbon taxes and mandatory
regulation of existing industries and services. In the event that it cannot
meet related standards, the Group may have to pay taxes or fines.
While it is inevitable for the Group to emit pollutants as per its business
nature, the Group is committed to performance monitoring, constantly
striving to achieve best practices to minimise its environmental footprints
and keeping informed with the latest updates to related regulations to
better prepare the Group for adaptation measures.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group believes that its success relies on the contributions and
support of its talented employees. Employees are an important asset to
the Group’s success, and it has always been committed to providing
a harmonious working environment and growing with its employees in
order to support the development of both parties and its business in the
long run. The Group embraces the principles of equality, diversity and
inclusion, as it believes that openness and inclusiveness enable the
workforce to be more productive and accountable so that it can better
serve its customers’ needs.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations on compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare that would have a significant impact on the Group, including
but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Minimum Wage Ordinance
(Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Labour Contract Law of the
People’'s Republic of China, the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Regulations on Management of Housing
Provident Fund, the Provisions on Minimum Wages and the Regulation
on the Implementation of the Employment Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Employee Composition

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had a total workforce of 729
(FY2021/22: 1,256) employees. Guided by the principles of non-
discrimination and fair employment, the Group provides equal
opportunities to all employees, regardless of their age and gender.
Committed to growing its business with its employees, the Group has
a good relationship with its employees thanks to its mature human
resources policy and trusting relationships. The Group is eager to see
the expansion of its talented team in the coming years.

The Group’s employee composition by gender, age group, geographical
region and employment type were as follows:

By Gender
BEHENES
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feq3

62%
By Geographical Region
& i 12 & i Bl o
r 5%
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China
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By Age Group
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By Employment Type

RERERES

B Non-fixed-term
contract employees

0,
0-3% — \r 3.7% 3&%%%%&
AMEBET
A |

Fixed-term contract
employees
EFHREHET
Temporary workers
R T
Re-employed retirees
EX kD)
RIRAE

Il Disabled persons
BIRAT

83.7%

66 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #f S E1RIHZR A R 2 & / Annual Report FEEHE 2022 /2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION B: SOCIAL (continued)
Aspect B1: Employment (Conmueo/)

Employee Benefits

The Group has a well-established monthly performance evaluation
mechanism with different KPIs set up in different areas for all employees
for assessment in order to reward outstanding employees and its
talented workforce. The management regularly reviews the Group’s
remuneration and welfare policies with reference to market standards
and is committed to safeguarding the rights and interests of employees.
The employee performance assessment is conducted at the end
of each year. Remuneration and benefits will be adjusted annually
based on employees’ personal performance, contributions and market
conditions in the performance assessment. Promotion decisions
are made based on careful consideration of job responsibilities
together with the individual's qualifications, relevant experiences and
performance, as well as their conduct and potential within the Group.
Promotions and salary raises are awarded to all contributing employees.

Besides, the Group encourages work-life balance and establishes
benefit schemes for its employees in the PRC and Hong Kong in
accordance with the labour laws of the PRC and Hong Kong. The
Group also offers entertainment facilities for leisure and entertainment
during non-working hours. Moreover, the Group actively organises
large-scale sports activities for employees of different departments in
the PRC during leisure time. The Group also organises various team-
building activities to enrich the employees’ spare time and strengthen
their sense of belonging, such as outdoor running and competitive
team-building games. This also aims to improve employees’ health and
ensure work-life balance and well-being among employees.

The Group has also established policies and procedures for protecting
female workers who work in the PRC factory during their pregnancy and
within 3 months after giving birth. During the above-mentioned period,
female factory workers are exempted from demanding job duties,
such as working in harmful environments and engaging in physically
demanding and fatigue-prone work activities. Pregnant workers are also
barred from overtime work or night shift schedules.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (continued)
Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Employee Benefits (Continued)

The Group provides employees with various types of insurance

coverage under statutory requirements. For employees in Hong
Kong, contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund and Employees’
Compensation Insurance are required according to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). For employees in the PRC, the
Group has contributed to the Social Insurance and Housing Provident
Fund in compliance with the local rules and regulations in the PRC.
Besides the statutory requirements, the Group has also subscribed to
Employer's Liability Insurance for employees in the PRC, apart from the
Social Insurance and Housing Provident Fund. The extra subscription
insurance provides extra protection to the employees who subscribed
to Social Insurance and to those who do not subscribe to Social
Insurance due to being re-employed retirees. Furthermore, the Group
has not laid off any employees nor reduced employees’ salaries,
subsidies or benefits amid the ongoing impact of the COVID-19
epidemic.

The Group will take all applicable measures to address the challenges
of attracting and retaining talent. The Group is in the process of
enhancing and strengthening its human resources system and commits
to caring for its employees by enabling them to express their opinions
anonymously on various platforms, such as instant messaging groups,
employee satisfaction surveys and feedback collection boxes.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Harmonious Working Environment

A harmonious working environment is fundamental for employees to
thrive and nurture abundance. As an equal opportunity employer, the
Group is committed to diversity and inclusion in its recruitment and
talent development processes, promoting equality and respect in all
aspects of its hiring process and work. The Group strives to ensure
equal employment opportunities for all employees, regardless of
their ethnicity, colour, religious belief, age, gender, sexual orientation,
nationality, citizenship, disability, marital status or any other characteristic
protected by law. Moreover, the Group also strives to create an
equitable and healthy working environment that is free of intimidation,
hostility, or any other form of harassment while protecting the rights
and interests of employees in the workplace. The Group promotes the
understanding and awareness of non-discrimination, anti-harassment
and non-bullying policies by communicating these in team meetings
and in its policies, such as the Social Responsibility Management
Handbook and the Anti-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment
Management Procedures. Furthermore, the Group strictly prohibits
situations involving child labour and forced labour.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (continued) BX4o : & (&)

Aspect B1: Employment (Conmueo/) EmB1 : EE &)

Talent Retention BHEBAT

Given that printing is a traditional business, the employee tumover rate EREIRIE —BERER  ZITEMNB TRKLR
is relatively high in this industry. With a good relationship between the ¥ &S - HRAEE L EBBERLT - EER
Group and its employees, the employees are keen to stay and work ~ AMBEAEE - RIBEFE - ASENEES
for the Group. During the Reporting Year, the Group’s overall monthly  AFH B TRAER M AB28% (T =— /=8
average employee turmover rate* was approximately 28% (FY2021/22: % : 6%) - MR ANEEE #FEY THEBZEM -
5%). As the Group has moved its Shenzhen factory to Huizhou, a  #89 B T BRI ER N - AR REFE
higher turnover rate has been recorded during the Reporting Year,  $#BEEHREAE - TRARIER R F AR
as some of its employees were not wiling to move to Huizhou from  BISBEAFHE TREE -

Shenzhen. The following table shows the monthly average employee

turnover rate by gender and age group®.

FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—E-= —Eg2=-—/
Average Monthly Turnover Rate BRAFPHFR LR —ZEE ——F
By Gender &R &l
Male Bt 24% 6%
Female eqi 35% 4%
By Age Group BRERARE D
18-25 18E255% 66% 7%
26 -35 26 &= 355% 25% 6%
36 - 45 36 E 4575 22% 4%
46 - 55 46 E55B% 12% 2%
56 - 65 56 £ 655X 2% 1%
Above 65 658 A £ Nil & Nil 4%
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to provide a safe and ~ BEXRK REEEHEAREREBIRE—EAZEM

harmonious working environment for employees while striving to  &E T/EIRIE - MO BREBEAARFKE
achieve simulttaneous growth between its business and talents, with the  TEFAE A A A Bifh o
am of continuously expanding the talent team.

4 The monthly average employee tumover rate is calculated by dividing ¢ BATHEIRAXIZGARKEEN (GTEH

the sum of the monthly tumover rate, which is calculated by taking the RNEGABBEE ABRIUEEARNEER A
number of employees leaving employment during each month and ) BRAI2ETESY -

dividing it by the number of employees at the end of the corresponding

month, by 12.

5 The monthly average employee tumover rate by category is calculated by 5 BEAEDMERFHE I RARIET ARAR
dividing the sum of the monthly turnover rate, which is calculated by taking R GTEAFARETENOST ABBES AR
the number of employees In the specified category leaving employment BRLAMEIE A RMIIEELEBIE B AR BRIA125TE
during each month and dividing it by the number of employees in the B e

specified category at the end of the corresponding month, by 12.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Group understands the fundamental importance of providing a
stable and safe working environment and is committed to safeguarding
the health and safety of all employees. The Group adopts a systematic
approach to protect the health and safety of its employees by identifying
and mitigating potential office safety risks and equipping employees
with sufficient fire protection equipment. Safety procedures are included
in the employee handbook for guidance. In the event of any incidents or
accidents, employees must report to their supervisors immediately.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations related to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards that would have a significant impact on the Group, including
but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap.
509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Law of the People’'s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and the
Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL o
Aspect B2: Health and Safety (Continued)

As for maintaining occupational health and safety in its operations, the

ed)

ied)

Group understands that both preventive and reactive approaches are
essential for dealing with accidents. The Group believes that preventive
measures, in particular, are more important than reactive measures
because they are more cost-effective and can better prevent avoidable
damages from incidents. The Group has provided employees with
protective equipment such as earplugs, rubber gloves and carbon
masks to offer protection when they are performing job duties in the
factory plant. The Group actively fulfils the statutory requirements and
aims to continuously improve the working environment of the factory
through regular inspections for potential occupational hazards. During
the Reporting Year, the Group entrusted a third-party inspection agency
to perform testing on each production process in relation to their
exposure to occupational hazards, including dust, VOCs, noise and
radiation. The testing results for dust, VOCs and radiation complied
with the “Occupational Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the
Workplace — Part 1: Chemical Hazardous Agents” and “Occupational
Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents in the Workplace — Part 1:
Physical Agents”. For occupational noise exposure, only 5 production
positions out of the 47 tested exceeded the standard limits. The Group
had already arranged for the workers in those positions to perform a
body check in order to confirm our employees’ health. All workers in
those positions did not suffer from any occupational diseases. The
Group has also established internal policies and procedures to provide
guidance for all workers on the storage, management and usage of
dangerous chemicals in both the warehouse and production areas
to avoid any serious deviations and safety issues. The Group will
continue to pay attention to the health of employees, regularly arrange
occupational hazard examinations and arrange suitable job positions for
employees according to their health conditions to prevent injuries due
to exposure to occupational hazards at work.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (continued)
Aspect B2: Health and Safety (Continued)

Moreover, the Group has also set up the Environmental, Health and
Safety Committee ("EHS Committee”) for monitoring, inspecting and
improving the environment as well as the health and safety conditions
of related facilities. The EHS Committee members are responsible for
avoiding the risks of worker injury and unexpected accidents. Fire drills
and chemical spill drills are held regularly by the EHS Committee in
order to enable employees to familiarise themselves with the evacuation
procedures. In addition, the Group has also set up several policies
and procedures for the workers regarding the reporting and handling
mechanisms of major health and safety incidents, along with work
injury and medical emergency management, etc., to avoid potential
work safety issues occurring in the factory area, such as fire accidents
and chemical incidents. In accordance with the Group’s Social
Responsibility Management Handbook, the Group provides employees
with induction training on building emergency response capabilities.
The training encompasses a wide range of topics, including anti-
terrorism training, fire safety, dangerous goods management, protective
apparatus management, safety production knowledge, etc. Apart
from the induction training, the Group also organises regular training to
strengthen employee awareness of occupational safety issues.

Jed)

During the Reporting Year, there were 7 people (FY2021/22: 3 people)
involved in work-related injury cases with a total of 57 lost working days
recorded (FY2021/22; 71 lost working days). In response, the Group
has provided financial compensation and organised extra training
sessions on production safety. There have been no fatalities over the
past 3 years. The Group is keen to gain a better understanding of each
work-related injury case by obtaining the related Work Injury Investigation
Reports. By analysing the reasons and causes of work-related injuries,
the Group can arrange appropriate follow-up actions according to
the recommendations in the reports to avoid the recurrence of similar
incidents and eliminate the tendency for employees to get injured. To
better support injured employees in the event of an accident, the Group
has subscribed to an Employer’s Liability Insurance to provide financial
assistance to workers as an additional medical benefit apart from the
mandatory Social Insurance subscription. Moving forward, the Group
will continuously promote occupational health and safety concepts to all
employees and avoid work injuries or accidents as much as possible.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety (Continued)

Besides, in order to protect the health and safety of its employees,
the Group has set up a set of policies and procedures based on the
COVID-19 control requirements of the local government to avoid and
handle any potential outbreaks of COVID-19 in the PRC factories,
despite the gradual subsidence of the COVID-19 epidemic. Moreover,
the Group has also provided sufficient anti-epidemic supplies, such
as hand sanitizers and masks for the workers working in the PRC
factories. Employees are required to have temperature checks before
commencing their work. The Group has also set up quarantine areas for
employees in case there are suspected cases of COVID-19 infections
in the employees’ dormitories. The Group also encouraged workers to
be vaccinated to maximize their protection against COVID-19.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B3: Development and Training

As mentioned in the previous sections, the Group provides a wide
variety of training to employees to equip them with the necessary work-
related skills and concepts. Standardised operation manuals and
training are provided to new recruits and existing employees regularly
in accordance with the Group’s Social Responsibility Management
Handbook and the annual training plan. Internal training sessions are
provided to all new recruits so that they can better understand the
vision and mission of the Group. Among the induction training provided,
the training sessions also included topics such as occupationa
health and safety, ISO management systems, social responsibility
standards and environmental policies. On-the-job training is provided
to all employees from time to time so that they can better understand
the latest printing technology. During the Reporting Year, the Group
has provided training to 702 (FY2021/22: 1,249) employees in total,
approximately 96.3% (FY2021/22: approximately 97.3%) of the Group’s
employees participated in training®’, and the average training hours®®
was approximately 1.9 hours (FY2021/22: approximately 2.0 hours).
The percentage of employees trained®®, breakdown of employees
trained®'® and average training hours®'" by gender and employee
category were as follows:

o All training data excludes employees who have left the Group during the
reporting year.
’ The percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing the total

number of employees trained during the reporting year by the total
number of employees at the end of the reporting year.

8 The average training hours is calculated by dividing the total number of
training hours during the reporting year by the total number of employees
at the end of the reporting year.

o The percentage of employees trained by category is calculated by
dividing the number of employees trained in the specified category during
the reporting year by the number of employees in the specified category
at the end of the reporting year.

o The breakdown of employees trained by category is calculated by dividing
the number of employees trained in the specified category during the
reporting year by the total number of employees trained at the end of the
reporting year.

" The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing the
number of training hours for employees in the specified category during
the reporting year by the number of employees in the specified category
at the end of the reporting year.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (continueq)
Aspect B3: Development and Training (Continued)

B2 € (&)
EEB3: #RNEI (&)

Percentage of Breakdown of Average training hours
Employees Trained (%) Employees Trained (%) (hours)
FENEEEIH (%) ZENEERE (%) TR (M)
FY2022/23 FY2021/22  FY2022/23 FY2021/22  FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—E-C —E- -g-=,/ —-—Z--/ ZB=Z T/
Categories Rl —CEE —CBiE ey §: 3 —CHE —CEE —CUF
By Gender BRI
Male £l i 96 N/A i R 62 61 1.9 2.0
Female i 96  NATER 38 39 1.9 2.0
By Employee Category RESER
Entry Level Nk 98  NATEA 85 o] 2.0 20
Middle Management FRERE 8 NATEA 10 5 1.7 20
Senior Management BRERE 87  NATEA 5 2 1.7 20

To maintain quality performance, the Group will continue to provide
ample training to its employees in the future.

Aspect B4: Labour Standard

Respecting human rights has been an integral part of the Group’s
approach to sustainability. The Group fully complies with labour laws
and other relevant legislation that prohibits child labour and forced
labour. In order to demonstrate its social responsibility, the Group
actively meets the local government’s policy of providing suitable job
opportunities to minors between the ages of sixteen and eighteen and
does not illegally employ any person under the age of sixteen in its
workplaces, and it verifies the applicant's identification documents in
the recruitment process to prevent illegal labour. In accordance with the
Group’s Anti-Forced Labour and Anti-Captive Labour Procedures, any
violence with the purpose of deliberately causing difficulties, threats and/
or corporal punishment and forcing employees to work is prohibited.
Prior consent from employees for overtime work is required, and no
employees are forced to work against their will. Besides, the Group
has set up the Worker's Union to provide an effective communication
channel for the Group and the management to better understand the
needs of its employees. The Group strives to ensure that no employees
are forced to work against their will or subject to corporal punishment
or coercion of any type relating to work. The Group regularly reviews
its employment practices to ensure that they are in full compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations related to child labour and forced
labour. Corrective actions will be taken if any faulty information or non-
compliance is found.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B4: Labour Standard (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the prevention of
child labour or forced labour that would have a significant impact on the
Group, including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Employment of Children Regulations
(Cap. 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Labour Law of the People’'s
Republic of China and the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on
Protection of Minors.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
Establishing a successful and beneficial relationship with suppliers was
one of the Group’s objectives for successful supplier management.
The Group has formed a strategic alliance with its suppliers, enabling
it to obtain raw materials of the highest quality at reasonable prices.
During the Reporting Year, the Group cooperated with 23 (FY2021/22:
64) suppliers in total, of which 20 were located in the PRC and 3 were
located in Hong Kong respectively.
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Before engaging any new suppliers, the Group conducts a thorough
supplier assessment to assess and evaluate whether potential
suppliers can meet its expectations. The Group assesses suppliers
based on several criteria, including aspects of operation flow control,
the management hierarchy, quality and material control, environmental
control and energy conservation policies. Both new and existing
suppliers are required to sign a Declaration of Conformity for the raw
materials supplied.

[ China
+

I Hong Kong
HE

ERBEMFHRER 2 AEESET2EMR
fEmath  AHERGFHBEEHEBR S EME
HE - AEEREXHAEES  EEEAR M
BRMEHES  REIEGIARBRERRE LR
EHHEEETHE THERIRARERY
ARFMEENRMHRZNAMRHE -

77



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERBE

SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
(Continued)

On the other hand, as stipulated in the Group’s Social Responsibility
Management Handbook, the Group also conducts an annual supplier
assessment on the performance of existing suppliers in areas including
raw material quality control, use of environmentally friendly materials,
environmental standards fulfilled, energy conservation and use of
renewable energy, financial background and the suppliers’ socially
related standards towards their employees. The Group also performs
incoming material inspection procedures to ensure the raw materials
provided by suppliers are of good quality, which also serves as one of the
assessment criteria for the annual supplier assessment. Since product
quality is its top priority, the Group prefers to cooperate with suppliers
who can fulfil its requirements and service commitments. Additionally,
the Group has also established the Production Material Procurement
Management Control Process to reinforce its supplier management in
terms of minimising environmental risks along its supply chain. During
the Reporting Year, the Group has evaluated and engaged with 22
suppliers according to its aforementioned procurement practices.

Besides, the Group is also aware of suppliers’ environmental
commitments and selects those who put emphasis on environmental
control. To promote environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, the Group communicates frequently with
suppliers about the availability of environmentally preferable products
or services as well as products or services that meet certain green
standards and specifications. The Group takes initiative to offer
environmentally-friendly products and services by informing its suppliers
that they will be prioritised in bidding for having such practices. The
selection of suppliers is determined by their overall performance,
regarding the mentioned criteria, assessment and evaluation, as well as
their green practices.

Moving forward, the Group will continue to regularly monitor the
performance of its suppliers to ensure compliance with its service
commitment with the aid of its annual supplier assessment plan.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (continued,
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing products and services with a high
standard of quality and reliability. The Group has been awarded the
following certificates:

° ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System Cerificate

° International Council of Toy Industries (ICTI) Ethical Toy Program
Seal of Compliance

. Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP) Verification
o GMP Certification

The Group performs incoming material inspection procedures to ensure
the raw materials are in good quality and condition for production.
The incoming material inspection procedures also aim to ensure the
raw materials fulfil several environmental and product quality-related
requirements and standards, such as the Restriction of Hazardous
Substances (RoHS) Directive established by the European Union and
FSC certification. Only qualified raw materials are used in the Group’s
production.

The Group pays much attention to the quality of the finished goods
sold to customers. The Group's Quality Control Department performs
outgoing quality control of the finished goods on a sample basis, which
is based on appearance, printing colour and quality, packaging and
metal-related substance testing. The finished goods are delivered to
customers only if they meet outgoing quality control standards. During
the Reporting Year, there were no products sold subjected to recalls for
health and safety reasons.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations related to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services that would have a significant impact on the Group, including
but not limited to the Sale of Goods Ordinance (Chapter 26 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance (Chapter 456
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Product Quality Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Personal Information Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China.
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RE  HERERBE

SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility (Continued)
Customer Complaints

The Group regularly conducts customer satisfaction surveys to ensure it
meets customers’ expectations and strives to improve its services. The
Group conducts the customer satisfaction survey semiannually, and the
feedback from customers who participated in the survey was positive,
indicating that they were satisfied with the products and services
provided.

Besides, the Group places huge importance on customer feedback
and has adopted a set of customer communication policies. Moreover,
customer complaints are of the utmost concern to the Group. The
Group will follow up on the complaints closely, and middle and senior
management will also be involved to resolve customer complaints. The
Group has established the Product Recall Control Procedures. In the
event that any finished products are found to have possible defects, the
Group can recall the defective products from customers immediately to
avold customer complaints. Upon product recall, the Group analyses
the issues, identifies the causes, rectifies the issues and requires the
responsible departments to adopt remedial and corrective actions to
prevent reoccurrences.

During the Reporting Year, there were 2 cases of complaints received
(FY2021/22: 3 cases), of which the complaints were due to product
defects and have been fully resolved. The Group believes that the
complaints were rare cases and strives to ensure quality control and
satisfy customers’ expectations with the highest quality in its products
and customer complaint handling procedures. The Group has also
enhanced product inspection and repaired faulty equipment to prevent
further incidents.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group acknowledges the importance of intellectual property rights.
The Group takes all practicable steps and measures to ensure that
the data collected from customers is always well protected regarding
the concerned designs and intellectual property. The Group has
applied RFID, NFC and QR Code technology to collect information for
marketing initiatives. All recipient information is properly stored through a
cloud service for safeguarding.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (o d)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility (Continued)
Confidentiality

Confidentiality in business promotes confidence and trust between
the Group’s clients and employees, as protecting privacy is the basis
for building trustful relationships. The Group's employees are required
to comply with the terms of the non-disclosure agreement upon
confirming their employment status to ensure confidential information
is properly kept. Regardless of the circumstances of termination or
voluntary turnover, employees are strictly prohibited from divulging
any confidential information of the Group to any other person, firm,
corporation, news organisation, media outlet or association during or
after their employment with potential, actual or past clients. Failure to
comply with the above-mentioned obligation may be considered a
serious misconduct by the Group, and the employee may face follow-
up actions.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group has zero tolerance for anti-corruption and bribery. The
Group has in place a set of anti-corruption policies, including the Anti-
Bribery and Anti-Corruption Control Procedures, to ensure compliance
by all employees, officers and directors of the Group. Employees
should not solicit or accept any advantage for themselves. Directors
and employees should avoid any situation in which their private
interests conflict with the Group’s interests. Regular training sessions
on anti-corruption are provided to all employees in the PRC to refresh
and enrich their understandings and knowledge of moral business
ethics and the importance of anti-corruption. During the Reporting Year,
47 (FY2021/22. 44) employees received on average 1 hour of anti-
corruption training, covering integrity rules and regulations, monitoring
and oversight measures and anti-corruption policies.

On the other hand, the Group has also formulated a whistle-blowing
policy and raised awareness among employees about maintaining
business integrity and internal corporate justice. The policy provides
details and guidelines for employees regarding whistleblowing
procedures. Should any suspicious matters arise, various reporting
channels are available for employees to raise their concems with the
Group. The Group’s management will review and take follow-up actions
to investigate every suspected case of misconduct raised through the
whistle-blowing mechanism.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL (Continued)

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees.
The Group was also not aware of any material non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the Group, including
but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’'s Republic of China and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China.

Aspect B8: Community Investment

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group actively engages in
ongoing community and charity work. The Group has established the
relevant policies to support its long-term community investment. During
the Reporting Year, 93 (FY2021/22: 33) of the Group’s employees
participated in a total of 278 hours (FY2021/22: 120 hours) of volunteer
work.

Besides active engagement in the community via charity work, the
Group is concerned with the education and development of the
next generation. The Group donated to the Hong Kong WEMP
Education Foundation Limited to make a one-time donation in the
amount of HK$1,000,000 on 19 August 2022, in order to sponsor
the organisation of Gala Dinner Event for helping children dependent
on mental health support in Hong Kong. The Group has also donated
20,000 RMB (approximately HK$22,600) to the dedicated education
fund by the Shenzhen LLonggang Charity Foundation and 24,000 RMB
(approximately HK$27,100) to Hupo Primary School.

In the forthcoming year, the Group will continue to expand community
service and activities to serve the interests of society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RIEgE
Emission Indicators Unit FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—g-=/ g/
BRER By —ZBE —CHMEF
Air Emissions kg 1,792 1,036
ERER NI
Nitrogen Oxides (NO)) kg 1,019 965
A& N0, N
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) kg 1 1
Hi@{L (S0, N
Respiratory Suspended Particles (RSP) kg 73 70
ARASETIR T (RSP) AR
Volatle Organic Compounds (VOCs) kg 699 NATEA
BEELEERIEY NIy
Intensity kg/HK$'00,000 0.34 0.16
B DT/ TBET
Greenhouse Gas Emissions tonnes 5,845 4,533
BERBHK W
Scope 1 Emissions from Fossil Fuel Consumption tonnes 126 1561
#EN RECRIRELERE R R AR I
Emission from the Use of Refrigerants tonnes 11 43
REFRRR BB [
Scope 2 Emissions from Electricity Consumption tonnes 5,647 4,294
EE) KRB BN BRI W
Scope 3 Emissions from Water and Sewage Processing tonnes 56 44
#ES KB BRI K K m KB BERL 12
Emissions from Downstream Transportation and tonnes 4.64 112
Distribution
RE ThER R HEHHER 7
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00,000 1.09 0.69
e B/ +EET
Hazardous Waste tonnes 18 13
BEEEEY [
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00,000 0.003 0.002
BE W/ +8ET
Non-hazardous Waste tonnes 2,649 3,236
BEREY 12
Disposed at Landfills tonnes 93 50
BEENEERE 7
Recycled tonnes 2,556 3,186
2 el W
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00,000 0.50 0.49
BE W/ TEET
Sewage tonnes 86,979 54,159
75K W
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00,000 16.28 8.23
BE W/ +EET
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ENVIRONMENTAL DATA (Continued) RIRHE @)

Resource Use Indicators Unit FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—s-=/ —E=-—/
ERERAER B —=EE —CHF
Electricity Consumption MWh 9,901 7,390
ENHHE KR
Intensity MWh/HK$'00,000 1.85 112
BE KEE/TEET
Energy Consumption MWh 10,406 7,993
BERHRE KK
Diesel Consumption MWh 443 533
Epichad PSS
Gasoline Consumption MWh 62 70
FUHERE PSS
Electricity Consumption MWh 9,901 7,390
BEE PSS
Intensity MWh/HK$'00,000 1.95 1.22
BE KEK/TEET
Fuel Consumption
RAUHRE
Diesel L 41,403 49,811
S 7+
Diesel Consumption Intensity L/HK$'00,000 7.75 7.57
SmERTE #/TEET
Gasoline L 6,385 7,252
b 7+
Gasoline Consumption Intensity L/HK$'00,000 1.19 1.10
RERRE #/TEET
Water Consumption m? 86,979 76,854
J=ZPISiEE 2 Mk
Intensity m*/HK$'00,000 16.28 11.68
B VK TEET
Raw Material Consumption tonnes 15,746 22,774
EATRUERE 12
FSC Paper Material tonnes 10,116 14,063
BANEREZEERE [
Non-FSC Paper Material tonnes 5,630 8,711
RERNERZEGRE 7
Refrigerant Consumption kg 7 28
BRBIHRE NI
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B B RE

BWE

SOCIAL DATA HEgE
Employment Indicators FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—g-=/ —E2=-—/
BREER —ZBE —CHMEF
Total Number of Employees & £ 4 % 729 1,256
By Gender #1525
Mele S 14 454 624
Female %% 275 632
By Age Group ZFiRA R 27
Under 18 183 T Nil & NIl 4
181025 18E255% 130 362
261035 262355 210 368
36 to 45 36ZE 458 207 330
4610 55 46 B 555K 152 176
5610 65 56 Z655% 24 24
Above 65 65 6 6
By Employment Type Z{EBF X &%
Non-Fixed-Term Contract Employees JEEIE SR A #HE T 27 215
Fixed-Term Contract Employees B HIR & 418 T 610 615
Temporary Workers E&# 8 T 59 380
Re-employed Retirees EHEEARIKA 31 46
Disabled Persons %k A+ 2 0
By Geographical Region %t B B 5 &5
Hong Kong &7 33 32
PRC 696 1,224
Employee Turnover & Tk &
Total Number of Employee Turover # 8 T ik A& 3,579 686
Percentage of Employee Tumover (Monthly Average) & TR&kB D (8 5 FH) 28% 5%
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SOCIAL DATA co HEEE @
Employment Indicators FY2022/23 FY2021/22
-8/ —E2=-—/
BREER ZZBF —ZHE
Employee Turnover by Gender (Monthly Average %)
EUHRESHNEIRAE (BATHESLL)
Male B4 24% 6%
Female %% 35% 4%
Employee Turnover by Age Group (Monthly Average %)
RERARNEIMEIRAE (BATEHESL)
Under 18 183U T Nil & Nil 4
18-25 18E255% 66% 7%
26-35 262 357, 25% 6%
36-45 36 E 455 22% 4%
46-55 ABEB5F, 12% 2%
56-65 56 £ 65 7%, 2% 1%
Above 85  BBERMA L Nil & Nil 4
Employee Turnover by Geographical Region (Monthly Average %)
RHBEERHAINEIRAR (BALHESL)
Hong Kong &8 Nil & 0.5%
PRC 29.0% 5.5%
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SOCIAL DATA cont HEEE @
Health and Safety Indicators FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—g-=/ g/

RERZ2ER ZZBF —ZHE
Number of Reported Injuries 2R ZEHF 7 3

Number of Lost Days 18k X £ 57 71
Development and Training Indicators 2% & & 3% 3512

Total Training Hours 4835 5115 21 1,404 2,498

Average Training Hours 391531185 25 1.9 20
Total Training Hours by Employee Category & 5HiZHIE (REEERE D)

Entry Level #1#% 1,198 2,334

Middle Management /4% & 18 [E 140 124

Senior Management & 4% &1 8 66 40
Total Training Hours by Gender & M3 & (R4 RIE2)

Male B1& 874 1,516

Female Z 14 530 982
Percentage of Employees Trained by Employee Category SiZ:IEEH oL (RESERE D)

Entry Level 14} 98% N/A 7~ F

Middle Management /4 & 18 [E 85% N/A N F

Senior Management & 4% & 1% 8 87% N/A i F
Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender Z3ZHI{E S M (4581 2)

Male B 96% N/A i A

Female % 1 96% N/A i
Breakdown of Employees Trained by Employee Category ZiZ:|ESHM (RESERES)

Entry Level #14% 85% 93%

Middle Management /4 & 18 [E 10% 5%

Senior Management & 4% &1 8 5% 2%
Breakdown of Employees Trained by Gender ZiZJ{EE T DL (RHERIE D)

Male 551 62% 61%

Female ZZ 14 38% 39%
Average Training Hours by Employee Category F19312 3| (REEERE D)

Entry Level ¥4 2.0 20

Middle Management /4 & 18 [E 1.7 2.0

Senior Management & 4% &1 8 1.7 2.0
Average Training Hours by Gender F193ZJIE & (324528 2)

Male 51 1.9 2.0

Female Z 14 1.9 2.0
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERBE

SOCIAL DATA cont HE8E 2
Supply Chain Indicators FY2022/23 FY2021/22
-8/ —E2=-—/
HEEEE —=HE -/
Total Number of Suppliers it FER 4 23 64
Hong Kong &8 3 32
PRC 20 28
Vietnam 8.5 0 2
Germany 12 0 1
Singapore ¥ 0 1
Product Responsibility Indicators FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—g-=/ g/
EmERER by - -3 —ZUE
Total Number of Products Subject to Recalls for Safety and Health Reasons Nil & Nil 4%
A&z RERZAMAERKWEREE
Total Number of Complaints Recelved % f 4228 2 3
Total Number of Legal Dispute Cases J& 24N 1+ 48 8 Nil & Nil 4
Anti-Corruption Indicators FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—g-=/ g/
REFER —=BF —HME
Number of Concluded Legal Cases Regarding Corrupt Practices B4 M BT ARG H R Nil & Nil 4
Number of Anti-Corruption Training Participants 211 &35 153189 A 81 47 44
Average Anti-Corruption Training Hours 15 [ & 55 55 31 5 1 N/A N3 F
Community Indicators FY2022/23 FY2021/22
—E-C =/
HEEE —ZBE a1/ K23
Corporate Charitable Donation (HKD) {328 Z188) (BT) $1,049,700 $10,000
Employee Volunteer Service Hours 18 8 & T R7 2K 278 120
Number of Employee Volunteers 2 &% T1EZ B B AH 93 33
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company during the year was investment
holding.

The principal activities of the Group during the year consisted of
investment holding and the sale and manufacture of printing products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and a review on the business activities of the Group,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group and an indication of the likely future development of the
Group’s business, are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 3
to 4 and pages 6 to 14 of this annual report, respectively. Certain key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s environment
policies and performance and its compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations, and an account of the Group'’s relationship with its
key stakeholders are included in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis”. These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year and the Company’s and the Group’s
financial positions at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 114 to 192,

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4.3
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the
register of members on 29 November 2023.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY'’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
For details, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 14 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the Group’s financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on page 2 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of our directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Neither the Group nor the Company had any connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the year. The related party transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements are
exempted continuing connected transactions.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which could
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Detalls of the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in
note 26 to the financial statements, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2023, the Company's reserves available for distribution
amounted to HK$481,112,000 (2022: HK$480,599,000), calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. In addition, the Company's share premium of HK$479,712,000
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on
9 October 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”). No share option has
been granted since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and
there was no share option outstanding as at 30 June 2023. The terms
of the Share Option Scheme are set out below.

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme enables our Company
to grant options to the eligible persons as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to our Group.

(b) Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any eligible persons to

take up options.

Total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue as at the date
of listing (i.e., a total of 48,000,000 shares representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report).

(c)

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company, in
any 12 months' period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a

general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e) Terms of subscription of shares upon
exercise of the options
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant.

() Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised
The Board may In its absolute discretion set a minimum period
for which an option must be held before an option can be
exercised.

(g) Time of acceptance and the amount
payable on acceptance of the option
An offer for the grant of an option must be accepted within
twenty-eight days from the date on which the option is granted.
The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

(h) Basis for determination of the exercise

price

The exercise price for any share under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to each
grantee (in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option)
and shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share at the date of grant.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme and there was no share option outstanding as at
30 June 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed
above, there is no equity-linked agreement that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares being
entered into by the Company during the year ended 30 June 2023 or
subsisted as at 30 June 2023.

AR A )
(e) 17458 RIS I 13 WV HAFR

BRI REBEBRESENGS  RES
SR RET TEAR T AL T FHR
PR BRI TEE

(N BREVTTENEZSENRENE

S RBISETBBRERTER
ARBRBERNREHR -

(9) EMRHEREXERERNORE

BRHBRENZHOVANEHBRER D
Bt \BREER - BEEARARE
MRLBRRNENRRBAARRRXN1E

JC °
(h) TEENEEEE

RIFBRE N ERRD ZITEERR
EEeEEYCAEEARA (REHER
BOEHHME)  ATNEERAT SRR
=E ()RR EAREBI ISR RERRA
I ERKTHE: ((REERLBEHE
f% AR AE A RERMIRNDZ
TEGRKTE : Ri)RE L B BORG
[EER

IR AR R B SR PR - B =
S=EAAS+ R WS RITE B -

B SR 89 150 R

W bSO B B 0 AR A RIS AT 8IS - AR AR
BE-T-=FAASTRLFERRTLE
fa] B8, 3% 42 80 53 3 6 B B o T B B UK A R BT
BRAD - SR A R AT LA G B S A B
DEBTRANGE - TRETERRENR =T
S=EXA=TAGE-

Q2 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #7 8 EN 224 iR 2 8 / Annual Report ¥ & 2002 / 2023



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 92% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 72%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 44% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 13%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang

Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin

Mr. CHAN Chi Ming

Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry

Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis

Mr. WONG Kam Fai

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number of directors
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company
at the general meeting at which a director retires may fill the vacated
office.

Each of Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin, Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond
and Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis will retire at the AGM and all of them, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry, Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis and Mr. Wong Kam Fali,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang (FR&i4), aged 79, was appointed as a
Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as the chairman and
executive Director on 18 January 2017. Mr. Peter Chan is the father of
Mr. Kenneth Chan, elder brother of Mr. Desmond Chan and brother-in-
law of Mr. Chan Chi Ming. Mr. Peter Chan is responsible for managing
the overall operations and business strategic planning of our Group. Mr.
Peter Chan founded our Group in the late 1970s and has over 41 years
of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Peter Chan has completed
form five education.

Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin (FR&E), aged 50, was appointed
as a Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as the chief
executive officer of our Group and executive Director on 18 January
2017. Mr. Kenneth Chan is the son of Mr. Peter Chan, nephew
of Mr. Desmond Chan and nephew of Mr. Chan Chi Ming. He is
responsible for formulating business strategies and overseeing
general performance of our Group, in particular the Group’s sales
and marketing activities, internal audit function and information
technology Initiatives. He has over 20 years of experience in the printing
industry and over 27 years of experience in sales and marketing. After
joining our Group in May 2003, he has been primarily responsible
for formulating business strategies and overseeing the general
performance of our Group. He was a committee member of the 10th
Zhaoging Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference* (FEIARBUAH RS HEEME /5
ZBe) from 2012 to 2017. He is also an honorary chairman of the
board of directors of the Zhaoging Overseas Fraternal Association®
EESINGESENEEELREDGR) M. Kenneth Chan was also
a director of the 3rd board of directors of the Hong Kong GuangFoZhao
Fraternity Association” (B/8EHEHREASEZBEET) from
2017 to 2020. Mr. Kenneth Chan was a member of the Entrepreneurs’
Organisation — Hong Kong Chapter Limited (B& S F N ERHE
ABRAR]) from 2005 to 2015. He was a YPO Beiing member of the
Young Presidents’ Organisation — Beijing Chapter (4% et R
&) from 2014 to 2019, in which he has also joined as a YPO Pan
Greater Bay Area member of the Young Presidents’ Organization — Pan
Greater Bay Area Chapter (5 F#H B XNER D) since 2017, He
has also been admitted to the Institute of Print-Media Professionals (Ef)
MIEEEEZ A BHE) as an Honorary Fellow since June 2018. He
is also a member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries (&7 L
¥#482) since October 2018. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce (BB E) since January 2020.
He is also a General Committee Member of the 42nd Committee of
The Hong Kong Printers Association since May 2022. Mr. Kenneth
Chan completed his second year of studies in computer science at the
University of British Columbia in Canada in 1995.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond (BR&4), aged 75, was
appointed as a Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as
an executive Director on 18 January 2017. Mr. Desmond Chan is the
younger brother of Mr. Peter Chan, brother-in-law of Mr. Chan Chi Ming
and uncle of Mr. Kenneth Chan. Mr. Desmond Chan is responsible
for overseeing the daily operations of our Group in Hong Kong. Mr.
Desmond Chan joined our Group in the late 1970s and has over 40
years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Desmond Chan has
completed form five education.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (PR 8R), aged 67, was appointed as a Director
on 17 January 2017 and was designated as an executive Director on
18 January 2017. Mr. Chan Chi Ming is the brother-in-law of Mr. Peter
Chan, brother-in-law of Mr. Desmond Chan and uncle of Mr. Kenneth
Chan. Mr. Chan Chi Ming is responsible for overseeing the daily
operations of our PRC production facilities. He joined our Group in the
late 1970s upon completion of his form five education in Hong Kong
and has over 40 years of experience in the printing industry.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry (R £ JT), aged 63, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Mr. Ng has
over 30 years of experience in operations and management and is
now the chief executive officer and an executive director of LAVENUE
International Holdings Limited, a private company in Hong Kong, and
his responsibilities include strategic planning, financial investments,
management of property development and investment portfolios, both
in Hong Kong and overseas. He is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Interational Housewares Retail Company Limited
(stock code: 1373), companies of which shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

He served as an executive director of Hang Lung Group Limited (stock
code: 010), Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 101), Giordano
International Limited (stock code: 709) and an Independent Non-
executive Director of China New City Commercial Development Limited
(stock code: 1321), companies of which shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He also worked at the Stock Exchange
and held various positions.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. Ng is a fellow member of CPA Australia. He obtained a master's
degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
November 1995 and a bachelor degree in commerce majoring in
accounting and finance systems from the University of New South
Wales, Australia in April 1985.

Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis (5RFE#), aged 75, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Dr. Chu
is currently a registered medical practitioner in Hong Kong with over
30 years of experience in medicine. In January 1973, he joined the
Medical & Health Department of the Hong Kong Government as a
medical and health officer. In September 1984, he was transferred to
the Accident & Emergency Department of the Prince of Wales Hospital
and was promoted to senior medical & health officer in May 1986.
Dr. Chu was also a medical superintendent of Tung Wah Hospital
between June 1981 and February 1982 and a medical superintendent
of the Prince of Wales Hospital between August 1989 and February
1990. He was also actively involved in the setting-up of the Accident &
Emergency Department of the Prince of Wales Hospital in 1984 and the
Accident & Emergency Information System at Queen Elizabeth Hospital
in 1994. Dr. Chu joined the Hospital Authority in December 1991 until
his retirement in July 2003 and was an adviser of service transformation
of the Accident & Emergency Department of Queen Elizabeth Hospital
through his membership in the Departmental Consultative Committee.
Dr. Chu obtained degrees of Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in November 1972.

Mr. Wong Kam Fai (E###€), aged 79, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 October 2020. He obtained
a Bachelor degree of Science from the University at Alberta in Canada.
After graduation, he went back to Hong Kong and worked briefly in
the government as an Executive Officer. In 1969, he started his long
career with the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a statutory
organization responsible for promoting Hong Kong's external trade.
In his more than 32 years of service with the Council, he acquired
extensive experience working both in Hong Kong and overseas
including Los Angeles, Chicago, Dallas, New York, Panama, Paris,
London, etc. He retired from the Counclil in 2010 as its Deputy
Executive Director.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
He soon joined the China-United States Exchange Foundation in
November 2010 as its Executive Director. The Foundation is a Hong
Kong based non-profit organisation established in 2008 to promote
positive relationship and better understanding between China and the
United States of America. In that capacity, he created and managed
a comprehensive program to enable the peoples of the two countries
from all walks of life including academic, students, politicians,
researchers, officials, media and businessmen to better understand
each other. He retired from the Foundation in 2018 and has been
invited by its board to be its Special Advisor since.

Senior Management

Mr. Tang Shichun (Btt&), aged 53, is the deputy general
manager of Tung Pak Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited and is
responsible for overseeing the production activities. He has over 27
years of experience in printing services and management. Prior to
joining our Group in 1997, he had around four years of experience in
Hebei Xintal Ruikai Printing Limited* (ATt A& el EN B £ A
fR 7~ A]) as an apprentice and his last position held was a supervisor
of the printing plate department (EN Rl 4% 2B P9 5 % ). He obtained a
certificate (4 & £ %) of printing technology™ (E Ml £ 17) from the
Beiiing Institute of Graphic Communication* (1t 5 E Fll £ ) in July
1992.

Mr. Chan Chiu Ning (FR#i2), aged 60, is the deputy general
manager of Sun Hing Printing Company Limited and is responsible for
operations and human resources management. He has over 24 years
of experience in the manufacturing industry. Prior to joining our Group
in July 2002, he had been a supervisor of the customer clearance
department in Solid Company Limited for over seven years. Mr. Chan
has completed his high school education in the PRC.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Yiu Cho (##1H), aged 41, was appointed as the
company secretary of our Company on 30 September 2021 and is
responsible for the company secretarial matters of our group. Mr. Lam
has more than 17 years of experience In the accounting and corporate
industry. Since March 2016, Mr. Lam has been working for AE Majoris
Advisory Company Limited. Mr. Lam has been a Non-executive Director
of Capital Estate Limited (stock code: 193), a company listed on Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, since February 2022, From August
2008 to February 2016, Mr. Lam worked at First Pacific Company
Limited (stock code: 142), a company listed on Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, with his last position being a Corporate Development
Manager in the corporate development department, responsible for
overseeing mergers and acquisitions projects of the company. From
January 2006 to August 2008, Mr. Lam worked at Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu with his last position being a Senior in the Audit Department.
From September 2004 to January 2006, Mr. Lam worked at Emst &
Young as Staff Accountant in the assurance and advisory business
services department. Mr. Lam graduated from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a degree of Bachelor of
Business Administration (Honours) in Accounting in November 2004,
He was admitted as a Certified Public Accountant and a Certified Public
Accountant (Practicing) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in February 2008 and January 2018, respectively.

In view of Mr. Lam’s experience in legal and company secretarial
functions and with stock exchange rules and regulations, our Directors
believe that Mr. Lam has the appropriate expertise for the purposes of
Rule 8.17 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, every director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for directors and
officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements, or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders as defined in the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, meaning Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang, Mr. Chan
Kenneth Chi Kin, Mr. Desmond Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Goody
Luck Limited and Goody Capital Limited (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have entered into the deed of non-competition dated
9 October 2017 (the "Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the
Company, details of which were set out in the Prospectus dated
2 November 2017. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each
of the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken to the Company that
with effect from the Listing Date, they shall, and shall procure that their
respective close associates and/or companies controlled by them (other
than our Group) shall not, directly or indirectly, be interested or involved
or engaged in, or acquire or hold any right or interest (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) in any business which is or is about to
be engaged in any business which competes or is likely to compete
directly or indirectly with the businesses currently and from time to time
engaged by our Group (including the business as a printing service
provider).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRSE

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the Company by
written confirmations that from the Listing Date and up to the date
of the Annual Report 2022/2023, they and their respective close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) have complied with
the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-competition. For the
year ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date of the Annual Report
2022/2023, save and except for the interest that the Directors have in
the Company and its subsidiaries, none of the Directors, the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) had any business or interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest with the Group.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors had reviewed the written
confirmations and the status of compliance and confirmed that each
of the Controlling Shareholders of the Company has complied with the
non-competition undertaking and the non-competition undertaking has
been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company
As at 30 June 2023, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), are set out
below:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)
Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company

A.

(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations

== S 2
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
or any of its
associated
Company/ Number and corporations’
name of associated Nature of interest class of total issued
Name of director company and capacity securities share capital
EARRRHER
g EER S
K28/ EEHEAR BRTRAE
SR BHARER BEMERSD 5 BOBEAE
Chan Peter Tit Sang The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
REE NG| REEEE R 360,000,000
(Wit 1)(Wit2) TRRx 1A
Goody Luck Limited Bengficial owner 756 shares of 75.6%
(Goody Luck’) US$1.00 each
EnfimA 756 RGRRE A
1.00% T2 &1
Chan Kenneth Chi Kin The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) Shares
REZ NG| REEEE ER 360,000,000
Bzt 1)(hit2) (D
Goodly Luck Beneficial owner 244 shares of 24.4%
US$1.00 each
ERBEA 244 REGRREE
1,002 KA
Goody Capital Limited Bengficial owner 1 share of 33.3%
(‘Goody Capital) ExBEA US$1.00
1REfE

1.00% T2 tn
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ESEWRE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (o

A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company

== S 2

LN E (&)
A. EERTHREABREQRIREG R
BRPZERER KA (&)

(Continued)
Long positions in shares of the Company or any of RAARASRHEMEELIERD ZHE
its associated corporations (Continued) (#)
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
or any of its
associated
Company/ Number and corporations’
name of associated Nature of interest class of total issued
Name of director company and capacity securities share capital
EARNRRER
R EEE S
A8/ EEUER BRTRA
SR BHARER BEMERSD 5 BOBEAE
Chan Chi Ming The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 7) (Note 2) shares
R NG| RE B EERE 360,000,000
Wizt 1)hizt2) IR 1A
Goody Capital Beneficial owner 1 share of 33.3%
US$1.00
EmnfimA 1REE
1,002 KA
Chan Chun Sang The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
Desmond corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
REE NG REEEEER IR 1A
Wizt 1)hizt2)
Goody Capital Beneficial owner 360,000,000 33.3%
1 share of
US$1.00
EnfimA 1REE
1,002 Kt
Notes: Biat -

1. The Company is owned as to 54.8% by Goody Luck and
20.2% by Goody Capital immediately after the completion of the
capitalisation issue and the share offer (without taking into account
any of the shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the over-allotment option and the options that may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme). Goody Luck is owned as to
75.6% by Mr. Peter Chan and 24.4% by Mr. Kenneth Chan, and
Goody Capital is owned as to 33.3% by Mr. Desmond Chan,
33.3% by Mr. Chan Chi Ming and 33.3% by Mr. Kenneth Chan.

REREERLBEITRBMHEETKE (K
A K B RE BC AR R AR AR B AR A A &I AT
BE B R TR ] R R I B
TEEMAAR ) - 24N A &) B Goody Luck
5 54.8% #E = [ B Goody Capital # B
20.2% 1 25 > Goody Luck B PR 8 4 5t 4
B 756%KEm R AR EER ST AT A 24.4%
WS » T Goody Capital Bl F B & 4 5t 4
E33.3% MRS AEME B 33.3% K H
PRGBS A A 833.3% A4 ©
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (¢

A.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(L 1

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of

its associated corporations (Continued)
Notes:. (Continued)

2. Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Kenneth Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, and
Mr. Desmond Chan are persons acting in concert pursuant to the
Acting in Concert Confirmation and Undertaking and accordingly
each of them is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the
others. By the Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking,
with respect to the businesses of each member of the Group,
(i) each of Mr. Peter Chan and Mr. Desmond Chan confirms
that since 31 December 1990; (ii) each of Mr. Peter Chan,
Mr. Desmond Chan and Mr. Chan Chi Ming confirms that since
5 February 1991; and (iiij each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Desmond
Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Kenneth Chan confirms that
since 8 March 2010, (i) they have agreed to consult each other
and reach an unanimous consensus among themselves on such
matters being the subject matters of any shareholders’ resolution,
prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed at any
shareholders’ meeting of each member of the Group, and have
historically voted on each resolution in the same way; (i) they have
centralised the ultimate control and right to make final decisions
with respect to their interests in the businesses and projects of
members of the Group; and (iii) they have operated members of
the Group as a single business venture on a collective basis and
have made collective decisions in respect of the financial and
operating policies of the members of the Group, and will continue
to do so. As such, each of the controlling shareholders is deemed
to be interested in 75.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Short positions in shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the
Directors and/or chief executives of the Company nor their
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have
taken under the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required
to be kept therein or which would be required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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ESEWRE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (o

ied)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company

As at 30 June 2023, the following persons (other than the
directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests of
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

== S 2

EnRHE (@)
B. FERFREMATRAERDTRS
REEROZERER KA

RIBZ=FXA=1H8" ATAL (TE
BARREFRITHAR) RAR RN K&
BEARNDPEELARRAREES LB
BIEPIFESCIRAFE 2 REERLMZ5%

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: A R
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company RAEQARAEBERZHERE
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Number of total issued
Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares share capital
EARARZH
BRITRE
BREHE/ BB E2Vg 3:4:3- RIOEE BRESH
Goody Luck Beneficial interest (Notes 1, 2) 360,000,000 75%
Bakn (Wit 2)
Goody Capital Beneficial interest (Notes 1, 2) 360,000,000 75%
Balkm (it 2)
Mr. Peter Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
BRI REEEER (Hi2)
Mr. Kenneth Chan Interest in controlled corporations (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
BREBLE RiEEEEE (Hit2)
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
BERLE REEEES (Hit2)
Mr. Desmond Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
BEELE REEE#ER (Hi2)
Ms. Chan Lai Lin Diana Interest of spouse (Note 3) 360,000,000 75%
FREERT T BiER (Hi2s)
Ms. Wong Orangeo Wendy Interest of spouse (Note 4) 360,000,000 75%
FEELL B (s (Wit4)
Ms. Lee Shuk Fong Interest of spouse (Note 5) 360,000,000 75%
ERFLL TR (M)
Ms. Tso Yin Wah Interest of spouse (Note 6) 360,000,000 75%
TrELL T (Hite)
Deputada Leong On Kei, Angela Beneficial interest 24,000,000 5%
RLUHE Bakn
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:

1. The Company is owned as to 54.8% by Goody Luck and 20.2%
by Goody Capital after the completion of the capitalisation issue
and the share offer. Goody Luck is owned as to 75.6% by
Mr. Peter Chan and 24.4% by Mr. Kenneth Chan, and Goody
Capital is owned as to 33.3% by Mr. Desmond Chan, 33.3% by
Mr. Chan Chi Ming and 33.3% by Mr. Kenneth Chan.

2. Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Kenneth Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and
Mr. Desmond Chan are persons acting in concert pursuant to the
Acting in Concert Confirmation and Undertaking and accordingly
each of them is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the
others. By the Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking,
with respect to the businesses of each member of the Group,
(i) each of Mr. Peter Chan and Mr. Desmond Chan confirms
that since 31 December 1990; (ii) each of Mr. Peter Chan,
Mr. Desmond Chan and Mr. Chan Chi Ming confirms that since
5 February 1991; and (iiij each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Desmond
Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Kenneth Chan confirms that
since 8 March 2010, (i) they have agreed to consult each other
and reach an unanimous consensus among themselves on such
matters being the subject matters of any shareholders’ resolution,
prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed at any
shareholders’ meeting of each member of the Group, and have
historically voted on each resolution in the same way; (i) they have
centralised the ultimate control and right to make final decisions
with respect to their interests in the businesses and projects of
members of the Group; and (iii) they have operated members
of the Group as a single business venture on a collective basis
and have made collective decisions in respect of the financial
and operating policies of the members of the Group, and will
continue to do so. As such, each of the controlling shareholders is
deemed to be interested in 756% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

3. Ms. Chan Lai Lin Diana is the spouse of Mr. Peter Chan. Under
the SFO, Ms. Chan is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares in which Mr. Peter Chan is interested.

4, Ms. Wong Orangeo Wendy is the spouse of Mr. Kenneth Chan.
Under the SFO, Ms. Wong is deemed to be interested in the
same number of shares in which Mr. Kenneth Chan is interested.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:. (Continued)

5. Ms. Lee Shuk Fong is the spouse of Mr. Chan Chi Ming. Under
the SFO, Ms. Lee is deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares in which Mr. Chan Chi Ming is interested.

6. Ms. Tso Yin Wah is the spouse of Mr. Desmond Chan. Under the
SFO, Ms. Tso is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Desmond Chan is interested.

Short positions in shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations

As at 30 June 2023, no person, other than the directors and
chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company” above, had registered an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has no significant events after the reporting period up to the
date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Chan Peter Tit Sang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B A2 AR

e
EY::

To the shareholders of Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun
Hing Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 114 to 192, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPEND

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

ENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETSEE EENETNMEERERETSE
Provision for inventories
FERE

As at 30 June 2023, the Group recorded gross inventories
of approximately HK$32,680,000 and a provision for
impairment of approximately HK$2,409,000. The write-
down of inventories to net realisable value was estimated by
management through the application of judgement and the
use of highly subjective assumptions.
R-ZZE-_=ZFXNA=Z1TH AEEHBFEFEEY
32,680,000 7T * FORMER#472,400,0008 7T - EIE/E
FRERABNSEEBEIREAMBRTFEEATZR
/?{E

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment
provision for inventories are included in notes 3, 4, 7 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
FRATFERERENSTRERBEEEHENGS MK
IRERMIFES 4 7R18°

Qur audit procedures included:

B BEEZF B -

obtaining an understanding of management’s controls over
identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excess and other inventory items whose costs may not be
fully recoverable;

BEXEEBHNARMGERE - B%  HiH  BF
PAR AR BE 2 BP M B 2 FF B HyF2 6]

evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the impairment;

il EEBEHERERAANGE BABMNE
B

assessing the adequacy of impairment provision by
reviewing subsequent sales after the year end; and
FREHNFREBRAZEEFEL R - R LRER
HBEERR : &

observing physical condition of inventories by performing
physical inventory inspection.

BRETFERMRE  RERFENERMNR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alterative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ki Wing Yee, Winnie.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

28 September 2023
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REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Government grants

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF

THE COMPANY

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted
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Notes

#iE
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13

For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=THLEE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —=E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
534,445 657,726
(313,669) (390,822)
220,776 266,904
12,163 3,596
1,249 304
(7,788) (10,240)
(106,271) (108,377)
(7,653) (3,574)
(8,493) (6,281)
103,983 142,332
(26,497) (26,552)
77,486 115,780

HK cents &l  HK cents &l
16.14 2412



PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Other comprehensive loss that
may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

FEBEF

Hit2EAE R

RERBRAEER D BEBEN
Hip 2w E1S

BEBIINETOELZR

FREMZHEESE - MERBIR

EABRERABGFE
2HE W EAE

For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=THLEE

2023
—E-=HF
HK$’000
FHET
77,486

(12,552)

(12,552)

64,934

2022
S

=

HK$000
FET
115,780

(5,855)

(5,855)

109,925



30 June 30 June

2023 2022
—EC-= —F-—
~AA=+H ~NA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Biat FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB KR 14 176,683 123,712
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 108,823 127,373
Intangible asset B EE 16 2,137 2,137
Financial asset at fair value BATFEENAERN
through profit or loss ERMEE 17 - 9,884
Prepayments and deposits FENFIERZS 20 3,285 53,130
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 24 61 7,938
Total non-current assets EmBEELE 290,989 324,174
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories A= 18 30,271 65,902
Trade receivables B 5 MR 19 37,740 79,682
Prepayments, deposits and TEMHUE - Be REMEU
other receivables B 20 23,746 12,043
Financial asset at fair value BEAFEEFAEBEN
through profit or loss SREE 17 9,901 =
Tax recoverable Ak B IE 281 =
Restricted cash ZREIR S 21 122 269
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 21 305,757 237,169
Total current assets MEBEERE 407,818 305,055
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B S EMIE 22 9,326 31,563
Other payables and accruals HEiEMNFIERERTE A 23 35,287 44,642
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 7,823 7,514
Tax payable FESBEIE 46,628 45,457
Total current liabilities ME A ELRERE 99,064 129,176
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 308,754 265,879
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABERARBEE
LIABILITIES 599,743 590,053
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables Hfth S 50R 23 2,205 1,602
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 108,032 121,088
Deferred tax liability EEHARE 24 409 -
Total non-current liabilities JEmEN B EERE 110,646 122,690
Net assets EEFE 489,097 467,363
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners AATEEAEBEER
of the Company
Share capital f& s 25 4,800 4,800
Reserves ] 26 484,297 462,563
Total equity B 489,097 467,363

/ Annual Report F fE3k‘E 2022 / 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE-_Z_=—FA=tHLEFE

Exchange
Share Share Other Retained fluctuation Total
capital premium reserve profits reserve equity
k& ROEE Hftfe  REEN EXRBREE  EREE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AT AT AT FET FET T
(note 26())  (note 26(b)) (note 26(c))
(Hiitoee)  (Hatoen) (H#2ee)
At 1 July 2021 RZZ-—-%tA-A 4,800 479,712 (328,049) 220,644 8,17 386,278
Prolfitfor the year EFRA - - - 115,780 = 115,780
Other comprehensive loss forthe year: S REMZEFE :
Exchange differences on ranslation of REBNEBNERZE
foreign operations - - - - (5,855) (6,865)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZ2 A AE = = - 115,780 (5,855) 109,925
Final dhvidend for 2021 fnote 12) B -ERERE (WH12) - - - (19,200 = (19,200
Interim dvidend for 2022 (note 12) “Zo_EnBRE (HiH12) - - - (8,640) = (8640)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 R=—F-—F;xA=1H
R=E-—%+A-H 4,800 479,712 (328,049 308,584 2,316 467,363
Profit for the year FERA - - - 77,486 - 77,486
Other comprenensive loss forthe year; R EM2EERE
Exchange differences on translation of REBNEBMELER
foreign operations - - - - (12,552) (12,552)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2 M AR - - - 77,486 (12,552) 64,934
Final dhvidend for 2022 (note 12) “ECZEREBRE (WiH12) - - - (32,640) - (32,640)
Interim dividend for 2023 (note 12) —E-=FhERE (HiE12) - - - (10,560) - (10,560)
At 30 June 2023 RZZE-=F,:A=1+A 4,800 479,712  (328,049)*  342,870* (10,236)* 489,097

*

statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$484,297,000 (2022: HK$462,563,000) in the consolidated

*

ZERBRBER S MR R A 484,297,000

BT (ZTZ 24 © 462,563,000/ 7T)

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z_=—FXA=THILFE

2023 2022
—Eg-= —_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FHETT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KETEHFBSESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R 350 A1 e A 103,983 142,332
Adjustments for: LA T B IEFTIETEE
Interest income FEUA 6 (11,446) (3,246)
Depreciation of property, plant W BMEMEBZITE
and equipment 7 22,078 11,111
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FAEEZTE 7 13,406 19,221
Loss on disposal and write-off of items of HERREDE - BER
property, plant and equipment B =] 7 8,363 1,603
Write-down of inventories MRFE 7 391 960
Fair value loss/(gain) on a financial asset BAFEBERERAERNS
at fair value through profit or loss B BEEZAFEEE
(Yezz) 7 (17) 704
Impairment of trade receivables OB e B Z BR K 7 338 -
Impairment of an intangible asset BmEEEZRE 7 - 563
Finance costs B A 8 8,493 6,281
145,589 179,629
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®RD 7 (5m) 31,832 (1,681)
Decrease in trade receivables & 5 FE W GRIE Rk 41,562 2,210
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits ~ TEATFRIB « &% & H b FE IR
and other receivables ER A, () 27(c)(), (i) 37,504 (42,739)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B SR FRER N, CRd) (20,989) 3,325
Increase/(decrease) in other payables E R M ERT & A
and accruals Zm, Cid) 27(c)i), (i) (10,134) 7,976
Cash generated from operations BEMBIAS 225,364 148,620
Interest paid BERFE (8,493) 6,281)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBHEH (16,544) (12,812)
Overseas taxes paid B8R IR (382) (150)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEETHMBHREREFH 199,945 129,377
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZTBFBSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 W F B 6, 27(c)(v) 9,029 2,544
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME BEXXHEEE 14, 27(c)
equipment (i), (i) (93,751) (66,730)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEWE - BELEBEEER
property, plant and equipment FR1S 3R 4,375 241
Decrease in restricted cash PR #1135 & R A 133 635
Net cash flows used in investing activities KESZHMAR S REFH (80,214) (63,310)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METEBESRERE
ACTIVITIES
Principal portion of lease payments HMEBH 2 ALIHH 27(@) (7,385) (4,298)
Dividend paid EfRE (43,200) (27,840)
Net cash flows used in financing activities AR EFTRIES RE RS (50,585) (32,138)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE-_Z-_=FA=THILFE
2023 2022
—E== S ——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERBASEEYEMTE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 69,146 33,929
Cash and cash equivalents FUNHRE RESEED
at beginning of year 237,159 203,510
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  JMNiEE [ R & 85/ 2558 (548) (280)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNEERASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 305,757 237,159

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBRESEBYEBIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 24,659 53,853
Non-pledged time deposits and wealth BERRBIHALR=EADN

management products with original IR BT R IE R E S

maturity of less than three months

when acquired 281,098 183,306
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HRAERETRERREAYH

in the consolidated statement of RREMRIE S &

cash flows and the consolidated REEEY

statement of financial position 305,757 237,159
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R R B B

30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP

INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands. The registered address of the Company
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 4/F., Sze Hing Industrial
Building, 35-37 Lee Chung Street, Chai \Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
engaged in the manufacture and sale of printing products during
the year.

Goody Luck Limited (“Goody Luck”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), is the immediate holding
company of the Company and, in the opinion of the Directors,
also the ultimate holding company of the Company.

RAREEESR

ARAR—HERSREEMKINER
A ) e AR A A FE M 4k B Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lslands ° XA Al
B B S B R BB L R R A 85-37
SOMEL T % RIE 448 -

ARBBREERRE - KRB REM B
RE|(MRBA[AKE]) REFALSRER
$HE ENRlan o

Goody Luck Limited ([ Goody Luck]) & 5
BHBRHAE (RBHEBRES]) Mk
YWAR BARBIMEEERAR M
EERAETARDTNZEERAT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R R B o

30 June 2023

—EZ=FXA=1+H
CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. RRAIRKEEER @
INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries EBEMBATNER
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARAREZBHBARIMFFBFNOT
Place of
incorporation/ Issued Percentage of
registration ordinary share/ equity attributable
Name and business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
EMERL TS BRAZER/ KRR ER
&R REXHY ERE BEEDL TEXK
Direct Indirect
Ef R
China I0E Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Intemet and technology
FEEMEEERAR a5 2B business
EBRRARBRER
Mau Hing Interational Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding and
BRABRBRAR B 100007T sale of printing products
REZFRRHE DRI
Strong Luck Limited The BV US$1 100 = Investment holding
ERARRES e REHR
Sun Hing Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 = 100 Sale of printing products
HEDRERAR Bk 6,000,000 7T HEENRm
Tung Pak Printing (Shenzhen) People's Republic of HK$151,000,000 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited" China (the "PRC"Y/ 151,000,000 7T printing products
FREH () BRAT" Mainland China REREERIR
MEARAANE
(TRE)) /HRE R
Tung Pak Printing (Huizhou) The PRC/Mainland China Renminbi 140,000,003 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited" FE/RERL (2022: Renminb printing prodcts
RRRED (M) BRAR" 80,030,000 REREEERIR
AR#140,000,003
(Z2-ZF: AR
80,030,000)
A These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises A ZEERBEBERENAEAMAIEBEE D

under the laws of the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

¥

ERITEZR/IBXELAREARFE
RENBRAEEFEET ZAKE DA
ARBMEBAR - EER AU E M E
RAIMFHBEREEHRBER TR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R R B o

30JuneZO23
—E-_=%,A=1+H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 1 RRERE

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss which has been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 30 June 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arangements; and

(¢ the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

MBHmRIBBEEESAMAE ([FEG
R AE ) BMAMEBHBRESER (&
AR BHRELER ) (BEMEBTEMBRS
R FRGE ((FASFERD &
28  BAELRERAEEE A BEDG
MEREMRR - BRIRAFEEF AR
SNERMEECKAFEFTEN  ERH
BHREDBBEBELKAERE - (R B EE
BN W EFBHRERATET ([FETD
25 -

RERBMERE
HEVBBRREBARFARENBELAE
E_T_—FRA=ZTHLEFENMBR
= MBRRRARRARERXEEEH
R (BREBUEER) EAKEH2 A
REHKEBNIHOHAERRLES
BANAR BB IREHRNE N (BIA%

EERTRARNATEREHREME
SRFRER) FEZSTE®E - NEUSE
e

HARFEERAMEREE I RREHRK
ZHERZRBOENOER - AIAKER
AT RAEHREHRNENSEE
E—OHAEERER - 81 -

(@) HEREHFHWEMEERFBEANSG
#z=HE

(o) HMEHTEEFTEENER

MiE AR R HmREAEARE — B
A BRERA-—REHERE - HER A
MRERAKBRGZEHEE B EF AR
BRE URBESHASREAKRE ZRIEHE
BIFEBRRIE -
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (con

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the holding company of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment.
Proceeds before Intended
Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, llustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

By 755 R 3R B

30 June 2023

—ET-=FXA=+H
SERENEE (®)

2.2

E?ﬁ&ﬁ;{ﬁ%@%ﬁ?&E’]X“Q‘EW%@E%E
RASEZERARNER A RIFEBRE
o ENRS SO ES A EBME
R FTEARAKEEXERRHNRS
MEBARBARHEERAE  #m - W
A RAXEReEREGREFAKREFE2H
K e

WEERBERBEREXATM= BT E &
Z—HEHFZEHBRES L NEBEgEHT
HEEDEGRESR - R—HMMEBAF
R EERE R T - MEND R KT
BIAER R HAER ©

M AREBA KM B RRIMESIE Al
IFERNZMBARMNEE (BEEE) &
BE: ()VEMEERESAOREE: i)
AR M RATIE N 25 - WHER () B BER
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K(iFrEETNIBE=ERN R RBHKE
o EAMERNHEMEZEWSZRRNAEE
JEIEAERE D HEF DB EERIIRE &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M EE

30June£023
—E-_=%,A=1+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES ‘

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described

below:

(@  Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 July 2022. As
there were no business combinations that occurred during
the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

()  Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. Since
the Group does not have any sale of items produced
prior to the property, plant and equipment being available
for use, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

22 S HERBESZEEE @)

RETERUBRELENNEERTEH
BRI -

(@)

BBV HIRELERIFE I (BFTA) LA

—N\FNABGRY HREGS
122 ([SER]) ZEABRAUAE
BRI 2 IELEZ 80 - T

BARNBREERNRE - ZFEF]
MBS BEREENESRAAE
o AMSIERNETEREENE
&2 T8 B M RERR IR B35 3% — B I HME
%o%%%‘ﬁﬁm'ﬂFT EER
BB EREITHRHRES (R
%ﬁ%@%iha>@%%mﬂ@
ERNMmBERRAEENS  WZE
EEBEBELEMERNERSHIE

'%E$¥%§%%%ﬁiﬁwM
SRMEREE SRS AASE
%%Wﬁ&§%<l%%%ﬁmu%
éﬁa) REE21R - MIEMSIE

o fboh  HEBRIARRE  HARE
ETFARKE B HERNGRYE - K
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BEAGFERFE 165 (BFTA) ik
BERUEME BB RRERENKA
T HIBRERLERE (BREEE
A EEEREEFENVE RAARER
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BEEMEBEUFAFEZRE B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

(©

e

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfiling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfiling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfiling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfiled
all its obligations at 1 July 2022 and no onerous contracts
were identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as
follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. The
Group has applied the amendment prospectively
from 1 July 2022. As there was no modification or
exchange of the Group's financial liabilities during
the year, the amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in lllustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

By 755 R 3R B

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture °
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liabilty in a Sale and Leaseback ?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts '
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts "°
Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information ©
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilties as
Current or Non-current
(the "2020 Amendments’) %
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilties with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments’) 2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies !
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definttion of Accounting Estimetes '
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilties arising from a Single
Transaction !

HEZER

2.3 CHEMEEHREMNEBIHE

AEBYBERNZSHEAMBHRERER T

ERME R ARERZHET REERTTEY

BE £ -

EAMBREENE 105
REE G EAE 25
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CHES)
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CHES)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion.

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on
initial application of HKFRS 17

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards and amendments. So
far, the Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial performance
and financial position.

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R R B B

30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its unlisted fund investment at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — pased on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — pased on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R R B o

30June£023
—E-_=F,A=+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue
Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual

impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

0] has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0] the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30June£023
—E-_=F,A=+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(o)  (Continued)

(Vi) a person identified in (g)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(vil)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3% to 5%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 5% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33.3%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 15% to 25%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont

Property, plant and equlpment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the statements of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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B ISR M EE

30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

@@  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
pbasis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful lives of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that is considered to be of low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES d)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont
Investments and other fmanmal assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES d
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent,
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

it has retained the risk

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
o receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES d
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 -  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, certain
other payables and accruals and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2023
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES d
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (con
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilites and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Govemment grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or senvices to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount

receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the

employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the Group based on a percentage of
the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully once made.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the memorandum and bye-laws of the relevant
companies grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currency of certain overseas subsidiaries is a
currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.
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3.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of an overseas subsidiary
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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30JuneZO23
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(‘ ontinue \n

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for
sale or use. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review at the end of each reporting period and makes
provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying values of inventories and the write-down
of inventories recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed. The carrying amount of inventories as at
30 June 2023 was HK$30,271,000 (2022: HK$65,902,000).

Ej( n-I_j:Uﬁﬁ'&'fEn-l_ 4z )

hEr TRERER
BRARERBEHREGERNRRATES
BT —MBRFEEAHEERABNREE
EHBERAENEEER LG THER
T2 HfEBFRR Tt -

WREE
EREEHNASEZFEMMN  WHEZ
FATHBESHERERZBRERFHT
EREELEE EEBIERBERLOS
BEBERRERTRGAZSFEEZAE
BEE AEEREREHRETHFESR
BY - WLBR MFHRBEELEE B2
BREHREPREMNFEHABER -

FRBRRBHETHEEREFEFEHHE R
et - WA BERREMT TR - A%
SERBFERSHARERRZFER
HEREERFEZHE - R-F—_=

ANA=t+H FEMIRMEEAS0,271,000
BIL (TT = —4F 1 65,902,000/87T) °
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5 7% i 2= Y

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

RE D EER
RERME  ARERA—ATLHREE
SHS - BNBUE R HEERIS -

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the manufacture and sale of printing

products.
Geographical information ih & & B
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REIIMBEEHIUWE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Europe BN 214,288 314,126
United States of America (the “USA”) £ 115,364 103,962
Hong Kong BB 86,650 155,949
Oceania AAEM 50,441 13,116
The People’s Republic of China REAREME ([HE])
(the "PRC") 9,262 8,784
Others Efth, 58,440 61,789
534,445 657,726

The revenue information above is based on the locations

PR SEER DRETFAELE

of the customers. Fl o
(b) Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
2023 2022
—E-= —ET-—

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The PRC s 281,207 300,714
Hong Kong B 6,574 2,500
287,781 303,214

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

EERBEEEMNVIREE Z I

wEly
HAE -

WA BRI E E MELEH
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B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to
10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below:

5. Re&EpHER &)

IEREFNEH
KEEEBES (HRKE10%IU L) 1
WEFIRMT

2023 2022
—EC-=F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A ZHEA 384,213 471,869

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GOVERNMENT GRANTS

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and
goverment grants is as follows:

6. Uz EMARBUFMHEED

Yas - B WA KRB BB 2T an T

2023 2022
—EC-=E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue W=
Revenue from contracts with customers EEA W= 534,445 657,726
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHWE
Disaggregated revenue information SHFBAER
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sale of products transferred at a point in time $HE R ERFHIEENE R 534,445 657,726
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BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023

—EZ=FXA=1+H
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 6. Wz HMtWARBATHEE (@)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHWE ®)
(Continued)
2023 2022
—=2== -2
HK$’000 HK$'000
Geographical markets thE 5 FET FET
Europe &M 214,288 314,126
USA =S 115,364 103,962
Hong Kong Bk 86,650 155,949
Oceania KM 50,441 13,116
The PRC G2 9,262 8,784
Others HAh 58,440 61,789
534,445 657,726
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TREFRARE G AREBYEL
the current reporting period that was included in contract liabilities BEKBRTHMAEXNBEOR EMERD
at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from EERK =S
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2023 2022
—=2== -2
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue recognised that was included in RBERIFAEGHNBED
contract liabilities at the beginning of the B iR E ¢
reporting period:
Sale of products HEEM 435 1,089
Performance obligations BHEE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of products
and payment is generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers, from delivery.

All the amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.

BERAASEENETNETANT

HEKm

BHOEBEEINEREER MBS
R—EAARIH TEBXFERERS

=@A (ARHEREHE

Al >

PERERNGHNBHNEETZXZECREY

I —F N ERER B R
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B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
ZEZ=FA=T+H
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 6. Wz HMWARBATHEE &)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and Was EMBRARBF#BASTIT :
government grants is as follows: (Continued) (&)
2023 2022
—E-= . —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income and government grants E Uk A & BT 7 By
Interest income FEUA 11,446 3,246
Others HAth 717 350
12,163 3,596
Government grants (note) WIS (Kat) 1,249 304
13,412 3,900
Note: During the year, the government grants have been received under Hiet - R BISHBIKRE BB ERBFELE

the Employee Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund
from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and for innovative and technology enhancement in the
PRC. There are no unfulffilled conditions or contingencies relating
to these grants.

E& T [RELE] 53 DA KB A e &I
Repetlrsogst &) o B HETE 2 1 B) 3 P 75
RERMGEI L EAMHIARFIR o
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

PR

By 755 R 3R B

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

EVE \\/ J

Al

AEENKRBRDEFE MR, GEA)

2023 2022
—=== —E--
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Cost of inventories sold# BEETERA# 313,669 390,822
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥1% - MEMZEZITE
(note 14) (Ktat14) 22,078 11,111
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) {Eﬁﬁﬁ% iéf?Z?ﬁ g€ (Witi15) 13,406 19,221
Lease payments not included in the RETE BRI ETAZ
measurement of lease liabilities (note 15(c)) %ﬁ%ﬁm ( /7/7/3}* 15(c)) 14,230 7,697
Auditor's remuneration 1% £ B 5 B 1,450 1,391
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors € BB AIFIX (FTEIEEER
and chief executive’s remuneration): ITERAEE BN )
Wages and salaries*** IE&%?%*** 97,187 127,958
Pension scheme contributions” RIRE RN 6,885 5,376
104,072 133,334
Foreign exchange differences, net* PEH Z R HE (1,031) 704
Loss on disposal and write-off of items of L MR - BB KR EEE
property, plant and equipment* RS 18 * 8,363 1,603
Write-down of inventories*™ MORAFE > 391 960
Fair value loss/(gain) on a financial assetat R AFEBBEIARNEE
fair value through profit or loss* BEZNFEBER (ke (17) 704
Impairment of trade receivables* O W E SRS 338 =
Impairment of an intangible asset* mEEEZRE" - 563
# Cost of inventories sold includes employee benefit expenses & BETFERKRAD BB 79,461,000 T
of HK$76,461,000 (2022: HK$100,795,000), depreciation —ZT = =4 :100,795000%T) WIEE

ok

of HK$31,170,000 (2022: HK$25,879,000), lease payments
of HK$9,162,000 (2022: HK$4,222,000) and write-down of
inventories of HK$391,000 (2022: HK$960,000), respectively.

These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This item includes redundancy costs of HK$797,000 (2022:
HK$10,849,000), HK$47,000 (2022: HK$2,453,000) and
HK$89,000 (2022: HK$6,920,000), which are included in “Cost
of sales”, “Selling and distribution expenses” and “Administrative
expenses’, respectively, on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

ek

@17 ~ 31,170,000 (Z B = — 4 :
25,879,000/ 7T) KT + 9,162,000/ 7T
(ZF = — 4 : 4222000 7T) WHEE R
M K& 391,000% 7T (=T = =4 : 960,000
BT BIMRTEE -

ZEBBRIARE
BRSOFE] -

BRREEN [EME

ZBRBEALZE
NI

SERRKEN[HEK

ZIBE BE797,0008 T (T = —F:
10,849,000 7T) ~ 47,0008 T (=T ==
£ : 2,453,000 7T) K 89,0004 T (= F
— Z % : 6,920,000 7T) H) JU#REK AN
WHRNEFALGEBERE@MA [HER
K HERDHEAZ RITHAX] -

I AR 2 R AT ¢
RERARIRB HFKF -

HARBEREER
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B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. FEMA
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHAE 8,493 6,281
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9. EERITHATEN

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2

RIFELETHRA - BB R ERPIZE383(1)@)
b CROERAR (REEEMEER)
IRPIF 2 B IR R F NEE RITIR AR B

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of UM
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2023 2022
—EC=HE —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Fees e 1,250 1,059
Other emoluments: HEMMe :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREWEA 47,231 48,566
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETEIHR 21 21
47,252 48,587
48,502 49,646
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIYFHITEE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

FAXNTELIFATEZNERSN

during the year were as follows: T

2023 2022
—EB-=F —EF-—

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry RtmikaE 350 253
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis RAERERELE 210 163
Mr. Wong Kam Fai EIREALE 210 163
770 579
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BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023

—ET-=FXA=+H
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9. EERITHAREM =)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Con qd)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFEHITESE @)
(Continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRBIEARBYIFNTESINE
independent non-executive directors during the year (2022 e (ZE=——F : ) -
Nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e FEMER ERE
wse BYEH ST B g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHT
2023 —g-=
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang PR A S b 120 23,969 - 24,089
Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond ~ BREA 4 120 2,865 - 2,985
Mr. Chan Chi Ming PRAEBASE & 120 2,873 - 2,993
Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin* PRAER A A& 120 17,524 21 17,665
480 47,231 21 47,732
2022 —E-_—F
Executive directors: BMITES
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang PREAE & 120 27,462 = 27,582
Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond ~ BREE 4 120 3,380 = 3,500
Mr. Chan Chi Ming PRARA S A& 120 3,588 = 3,708
Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin* PRAZERSE &~ 120 14,136 21 14,277
480 48,566 21 49,067

*

Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin, who acts as an executive
director of the Company, is also the chief executive officer
of the Company.

Included in the above salaries, allowances and benefits in
kind were rental expenses of HK$2,586,000 for directors’
quarters, details are set out in note 29(a).

* REBELEEERADRRITESRFR
TTHABE,

EEEZA2HEE R A2586,000%8
Tt AL %€ ZHREDE
o FEEHRIBIRENFE290) °

157



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)

(b) Executive directors (Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2022: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining one (2022: one) non-director, highest paid employee
are as follows:

9. EERTHEARETM =)

(b) HTES(®)
FA - EEHMETLRERELRE
PR A

FR - AEERERESNHH
1E R INAAER B3 h0 A By ) 22 B S B
B -

10. EEEEFES
FR IS5 maFEERENE (22—
F %) B HEBFSERN LU
Q- FAMB T —HB(ZTE=Z=ZF: —4)
IEEZRFEENFIFEBIHET

2023 2022

—EC-=F g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREDER 777 752
Performance-related bonuses FIRMERATEAL 168 203
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B R 18 18
963 973

The number of non-director, highest paid employee whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

BRUATHBANNIEEESRSHEE A
R

Number of employees

BE AR
2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
non-director highest paid employee as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FR AEEREANFESESFHERX
FEB - 1F & D0 A AN 52 B 3R I0 A B O 22 B
SkEERAIE -
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11. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of
assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%). The PRC tax has been provided at the rate of
25% (2022: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

11. FIBH

FREBEBFNCGHERNEBEENGET
JERF R FIZ16.5% (T —4F : 16.5%)
zmﬁﬂmﬁéﬁv HEAREBERES K
BRABIEFEAFSHMAHREAFENE
B AR o ZMB A F# & 2,000,000 7T
(ZZF = —4% :2,00000087TT) REAER
st EEREF8.25% (—F =~ — 4 : 8.25%)
5T & - 8 82,000,000 7T HY #B 19 BI #%
165%( — T = —4F :16.5%) #HHi - A E

the PRC. T8 Ty sh 7 AP B 2 AE A0 1 5t B BR B 0t A 4R
OB%(ZFZF : 26%) 2 FHAERFHRHE -
2023 2022
—®=-= —ET-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current — Hong Kong NER - BB
Charge for the year FARXZ 18,157 20,846
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (11) (145)
Current — PRC ANER -
Charge for the year FARZ 383 151
Deferred (note 24) RIE (Hfat24) 7,968 (3,300)
Total tax charge for the year FAKIBHRZ B 26,497 26,552
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B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is

as follows:

11. FIBH &)

ARIBOETE T 58 P BR B A& K RO B 7% R
XERBEERREOREFHHEROT

2023 2022
—E-= . =—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Profit before tax BR RT3 A 103,983 142,332
Tax at the statutory tax rates of ETRrAERNEEREAEY
different jurisdictions I8 17,006 20,776
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority 175 & BEM R BIE R (165) (169)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of RBAFENRRARBAE
previous years (11) (145)
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (2,055) (460)
Expenses not deductible for tax AATHNH A 2,730 1,588
Temporary differences not recognised RERZGRZER 8,992 4,958
Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate IR ANEBBERER XK 25.5%
of 25.5% (2022: 18.7%) ZEZZF 1 187%) ;HEH
MR 26,497 26,552
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2023 2022
—Z-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interim — HK2.2 cents (2022: HK1.8 cents) R H — &R E @A 2.2 51
per ordinary share (ZEBEZZF 1.8/11) 10,560 8,640
Proposed final — HK4.3 cents ERAH — SRTER4381
(2022: HK6.8 cents) per ordinary share (ZZT==F : 6.8%1) 20,640 32,640
31,200 41,280

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 480,000,000 (2022: 480,000,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic eamings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 30 June 2023
and 2022.

The calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share is based

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

13. AR AREFEARGERER

A

BREAEFHSBEIRBEARQ A RERS
EABEEEENRERDRITEBEN
DN S 5 £480,000,000 (=T ==
480,000,000 %) 5+ & -

AR AREEHE T _=FKR T

ANAZTHHLEFEHEEHTBLEEE
Taik AT EpEEEEEEE_Z
CEERZEBEZCFANA=ZTHIEFEM
VM FRERZFEL FHE -

BREAREERNIIRETISHAE

on:
2023 2022
—E-= . =—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company KRR RIRAERE B AL & T 77,486 115,780
Number of shares
REOEAE
2023 2022
—E-= ==
Shares % 12
Weighted average number of ordinary FREBITERRMETFIE
shares in issue during the years 480,000,000 480,000,000
HK cents HK cents
Bl JEN
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted EXRREE 16.14 24,12
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30June£023
—E-_=%,A=1+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
Buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Total
Bl £ER \
BY AE%E  BEREE  BOZRE HE @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEn FEn z23 iZ.23
30 June 2023 Z3C=FRA=1H
At30 June 2022 and RZFZZERA=TRR
at1July 2022 RZEZZELA-R:
Cost i 446 14,850 219,536 19,559 10,475 264,866
Accumulated depreciation ESiE (389) (1,328) (118,038) (12,908) (8,491) (141,154)
Net carying amount BEFE 57 13,522 101,498 6,651 1,984 123,712
At 1 July 2022, net of accumulated R=B-Z%tRA-A"
depreciation NREHNE 57 13,522 101,498 6,651 1,084 123,712
Additions AE - 21,550 64,477 5,874 4,980 96,881
Disposals/wite-off W&/ fE (53) - (11,010) (1,411) (264) (12,738)
Depreciation provided during the year ERNRERE 2 (3,156) (14,531) (3,060) (1,329) (22,078)
Bxchange realignment B AZ 2 (1,276) (7,267) (436) (113) (9,004)
At 30 June 2023, net of RZE-=&:A=1R"
accLmulated depreciafion ?ﬂﬁ?%‘iéﬂﬁ% - 30,640 133,167 7,618 5,258 176,683
At 30 June 2023; RZEZ=E5A=1R:
Cost A - 32,672 181,175 13,373 11,848 239,068
Accumuated depreciation ZitiE - (2,032) (48,008) (5,755) (6,590) (62,385)
Nt camying amount EEFE - 30,640 133,167 7,618 5,258 176,683
Fumiture,
fixtures
Leasenold Plant and and office Motor
Buldings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
WA
BF HERE  HRRER /w&ﬁ 8 @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKB000 HK$000
A1 AT AT AT AT AT
30 June 2022 “E--ERAZTH
A1 July 2021; R-B_-FrA-H:
Cost A 462 304 195,826 16,474 0,542 222,698
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (400) (304) (128,912 (12,683 (8.278) (150,647)
Nt carrying amount ﬂEEﬁ%fﬁ 62 - 66,914 3811 1264 72,051
A1 July 2021, net of acoumulated R=B--%tA-A"
depreciation kging 62 - 66,914 3811 1,64 72,061
Adottions AE - 14913 48,069 4,470 1,333 68,785
Disposals HE - - (1,817) (1) 6) (1,844
Depreciation provided during the year ERfTERE @) (961) 8,208) (1,415 (524) (11,11)
Exchange realignment ExAE ?) 430) (3,460 (214) 63) (4,169)
At 30 June 2022, net of RZE-=ERA=1R"
accurnuiated depreciation Mhgane 57 13,522 101,498 6,651 1,984 123712
At 30 June 2022: RZBZZERAZTA:
Cost A 446 14,850 219,536 9,559 10475 264,866
Accumuiated deprediation ZitHE (389 (1,328) (118,03 (12908) (8491) (141,154
Net camying amount BEFE 57 13522 101,498 6,651 1984 123712
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15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various buildings used in
its operations. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
between 1 and 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

15. A&

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 755 R 3R B

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

REBEEREEA

AEBERARNEEBEEEZSHETRIL
HEAK - BFZEABMAEENFI1E10%5F -
—RiME - AEBNRFRAREEAIINZ A
TEENOHEEAEERE -

(a) HEREEE

ER - AEEFERREEYFEER
BRI :

Buildings

BF

HK$'000

FAET

As at 1 July 2021 R=-B=—F+H—H 9,650

Additions NE 139,982

Depreciation charge e (19,221)

Exchange realignment VE 5 732 (3,038)
As at 30 June 2022 and R-ZB-ZFXA=1+HRK

1 July 2022 —E--_f+H—H 127,373

Additions = 2,570

Depreciation charge e (13,406)

Exchange realignment HE 5, 5 B (7,714)

As at 30 June 2023 NR-EB_=FxA=1+H 108,823
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30 June 2023
ZEZ=FA=T+H
15. LEASES (continued) 15. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEEERAEABA &)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEME
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the FRN - HEABEZREBERERNESH
movements during the year are as follows: HIOT -
2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At beginning of year READ 128,602 10,170
Additions = 2,570 125,880
Accretion of interest recognised during FADERFE
the year (note 8) BR (H:E8) 8,493 6,281
Payments 3R (15,878) (10,579)
Exchange realignment PE H FA % (7,932) (3,150)
As at 30 June RAB=+H 115,855 128,602
Analysed into: DA
Current liabilities TEENE 1 7,823 7,514
Non-current liabilities JEmBIELSD 108,032 121,088
Within one year —F R 7,823 7,514
In the second year F_F 9,982 7,969
In the third to fifth years FE=F=RF 38,136 34,647
Over five years BiBRF 59,914 78,472
115,855 128,602

E B 2 B R TR B B
Bk G2 I -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
32 1o the financial statements.
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15. LEASES (Continu

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ed) 15.

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)

(d)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

HE #)
AEEERAEABA &)
(c) REZPHEERRZEI|HFIINOT :

2023 2022
—Z-= —E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Interest on lease liabilities HEERZME 8,493 6,281

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets AL E 2 T EE A 13,406 19,221
Expense relating to short-term leases 5EEITR S R A N AEEAR

(included in cost of sales)* (FrASHERARN)* 9,162 =
Expense relating to short-term leases EHMEE R THER

(included in administrative expenses)* GFATTE RS R) 5,007 7,674

Expenses relating to low-value assets KEEEERBERX
(included in administrative expenses)* GTATTERAZA)* 61 23
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ~ RIB 5 FER 4258 36,129 33,199

* Included in “Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities” in note 7 to the financial
statements.

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 27(b)
to the financial statements.

. HAATRAERERER T ETA
ZHENK] BN EREH
7 e

d) FEZRESRHEBERAVEHREN T
27(0) HEE -
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30 June 2023
—E_=FRA=1H
16. INTANGIBLE ASSET 16. B &EE
Club membership
g
2023 2022
—s=-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&r
At beginning of year REA) 2,137 2,700
Less: Impairment loss (note 7) B ORIEEE (MiF7) - (663)
As at 30 June R7NA=1+H 2,137 2,137
As at 30 June: RANA=+H
Cost B 2,700 2,700
Less: Accumulated impairment B REDRE (563) (563)
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,137 2,137
The Group has classified the acquired club membership as an AEEBERBEEASTEUNEBRELE
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life in accordance with EBMEENELTSE I ERERTERE
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that AERNEREE - A RNBLTSE
the club membership has no expiry date and is expected to WHRERBH BEHBEAASEEA
generate future economic benefits to the Group indefinitely. The BREERNZ - A% FEFATIHELE
Group re-evaluates the useful life of the club membership each HEENERATFH UETRETESHR
year to determine whether events or circumstances continue to BREE S ZEAEREBN RS-
support the view of the indefinite useful life of the asset.
In the prior vear, the club membership was impaired due to FTEE 2BESSRENAMERE -E
the decrease in market value. The directors had consequently EHE1E D MR S 556 R E & 8 5638,000 %
determined to recognise an impairment loss of HK$563,000 TR EGRBESHEMETE  ERAYF
on the club membership and its recoverable amount of BERELEXNABELENTKRESHE

HK$2,137,000 was determined using the fair value less costs 2,137,000 T °
of disposal with reference to the market price quoted for the
relevant club membership.
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51 75 R R B o

30 June 2023

—ET-=FXA=+H
17. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 17. R AR EBEFABEZENERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2023 2022
—E2-= =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Unlisted fund investment FEMESKRE 9,901 9,884
Less: Non-current unlisted fund investment & : FEEN3E FTESRE - (9,884)
9,901 -
The above investment was classified as a financial asset at fair AR EAEEZANRERETERLRS
value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not EREMNK HEREGEAEATE
solely payments of principal and interest. The fair value of the Bt ANBRNEeREE -FLMESRERE
unlisted fund investment is determined by its net asset value MAFEERLEEESNIREEREIR
quoted by the investment administrator of the investment fund WESZHBEENFEEBEMMRE
with reference to the underlying assets of the fund. Subsequent Fig  ARBELEUHEZSELN LA
to the year end, the Company has fully redeemed the above WE  WKBEZFERBAE—KREE

investment at par value and the net proceed was used as BE o
general working capital.
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B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H
18. INVENTORIES 18. &
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Raw materials R4 # 5,341 28,451
Work in progress R 7,681 15,905
Finished goods BUAN S 17,249 21,546
30,271 65,902
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. ESZEWFIE
2023 2022
—=Z=-= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables & 5 FEWRIE 38,078 79,682
Less: Impairment B R EEE (338) =
37,740 79,682

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit.
The credit period is generally one month, extending up to three
months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a policy to manage its risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
As at 30 June 2023, the Group had certain concentrations of
credit risk as 34% (2022: 55%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from one of the Group's major customers. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

AEEAEEFHNESKRAETERREE
H-zEHRTAE @A RFLERE=
BA(REEREFME) BREFAES
EERE - ASERIRBERKREERE
WRIESE R BRISME - WRBBURULE
BHRR SEEHEEREEETHE
Me-M-_ZT-_=F~A=+8  A%£EAH
HETEESETRE  REARANEEMER
BHRRZB4%(ZFEZ—F : 55%) BIE
WAEB—BETBERFPZHIE - AEET
AMEZE SR FKIBLEHBEEWEARAR
HHEMIEREET A - B 5 ERRIB G

B o
o
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

9. EFENFIE £

By 755 R 3R B

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

\

REBEHR - Eﬁ% B 5 3 H0 B OBk 18 3¢
BEINEZRRFIERREAITAT

2023 2022

—E-= ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month —@ARA 22,842 59,923
1 to 2 months —Z=MEA 7,542 14,508
210 3 months MZE=EA 2,946 4,680
Over 3 months HmiE=fA 4,410 571
37,740 79,682

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

REHREBE NEBEFERABEERE#ET
BWEINMAGTEEHEEEE - BHEXRE
REBEUEBEBEANSERES 53 A
AEEEARE - ZeTERB TR ML
EESHEERRARSESHHRANESH
BRBAEEH - iR RARREEMRN
BRAMAEEREEER . —ME B
JEM I B E R —F R T LAMEE - B
TRZIRAREFIAITIEE) ©

AEBEAGOEREBH B REERNSE
IR EMEMEE BRI RMAE - &R
R AEE S REFARAE2HBEHE
B -

KRB ZRAZBEBEREZBNT

2023 2022

—E=-= —E- =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At beginning of year F9) - _
Impairment losses (note 7) WABFRE (it 7) 338 =
At end of year FR 338 _
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30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. EZBINRIE (@)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date RNEREDMFERRBEREETRED
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. e UFTERHEERE BHERIER
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings EREEUEBBEXNNZERTFE A58
of various customer segments with similar loss pattems (i.e., by BE B S E (AREFEMTTR) - 7%
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability AERMTHENEAR EBREEE
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable ARARBmERHRTESHEARNBESH -
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date B RIAR R B R AR A B AR S TR R A9 & 1R K AT
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future SREER o

economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TREYFERABBEEITNEBELRE
on the Group’s non-credit impaired trade receivables using a EEERENEREZERNEERRB D
provision matrix: B
As at 30 June 2023 R-B-=%FxA=+8H
Past Due
Less than 1to3 Over 3
Current 1 month months months Total
08 PR-MEA —-Z=@EB =@ANL &5t

Expected credit loss rate EHEEHEX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 89.66% 0.89%
Gross carrying amount (HK$000) RE8E (FET) 30,797 6,368 36 377 38,078
Expected credit losses (HK$000) REEEEE (FET) - - - 338 338
The expected credit loss rate for the Group's trade receivables R-ZEBE-_—_FXA=Z+H AEENES
was minimal for the year ended 30 June 2022. FEWFIENTEBEEBEMTRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

20. FAFRIE -

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

B Rk HEMERRK

OTHER RECEIVABLES b= |
2023 2022
—=== —E--

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FHT

Prepayments TEfRIE 3,399 52,051
Deposits and other receivables e M E M EWEIE 23,632 13,122
27,031 65,173
Less: Non-current prepayments and deposits 7 : JER BN B 3B R ik (3,285) (63,130)
23,746 12,043

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and third parties and value-added
tax recoverable. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The expected credit loss for the
Group’s deposits and other receivables is minimal.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts.

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance was assessed
to be minimal.

BekHEtmEKRRATEEEERS  H#
R RE=7TRE RATWEIRER - X&
BEEH ARERABEXRLZER
SEMBEBRTSETREDNT - BE
A I MR E S B IA R BRE AT
RERREBERTOTER - REBEZE R
HitsUGRIARNFEREEBIEEM -

FABEMEBRLRE - LIRSEHRTE
EEREEY Koo B & R SRR 8 R
BRSBTS -

R-B_ZR_ZF__FRA=1TA &
BRI RS BER o
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B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

21. RERBRSEEBYURZRE

RESTRICTED CASH BHe

2023 2022
—E-= —ET-—

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHES 24,781 54,122
Time deposits aEEER 281,098 183,306
305,879 237,428
Less: Restricted cash B XRHIRE (122) (269)
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 305,757 237,159

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
amounted to HK$10,038,000 (2022: HK$7,716,000), which
are not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with a creditworthy bank with no
recent history of default.

RIBERR REBUARE ([ARE])
FHERER & KRS FEW R 10,038,000
T (=T =4 :7,71600087T) * ~5H
HAEBRAEMER A REFBEAM
INEBIBIEHIA R EME SERMFESE
BT ANEBEBBRFEETINEEBD
BITHARELRAEMEN -

RITRSRERE A RITHERFEEZH
M RERIA B - BHEHRERIDRNF—
BEZ=EANIHHARFE RFAEE
BN FR) - WIREBNERAEHRE
M K ERERA B o SRITAE SR R EHIF RIF
ENEER BT IR IRTT o
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22,

23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE PAYABLES 22.
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

EZENRE
R|EEK - BEXREHLIINE 5
RIBRERB AT -

2023 2022
:E: = —_=__

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —MRAR 4,408 21,870
1 to 2 months —ZM1EA 4,158 9,057
2 to 3 months ZE =184 474 351
Over 3 months HBiE=1EA 286 285
9,326 31,563

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within three months.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23.

B S EARETHE AR AN
fit o

H BN RIER B E

2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Biit FET FET
Other payables E M FIE @ 407 874
Contract liabilities aHaE (b) 1,074 435
Accruals EArE A 33,521 43,142
Deferred government grants JERE R AT 4 B 2,490 1,798
37,492 46,244
Less: Non-current other payables W FEREE M ET A (2,205) (1,602)
35,287 44,642

Notes: BiaF -

(a) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of one month.

(b) Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from
delivering products. At 1 July 2021, contract liabilites amounted
to approximately HK$1,089,000. The increase in contract liabilities
in 2023 was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the sale of products whilst
the decease in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due to the
decrease in short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the sale of products at the end of the years.

(@) HMENFETFELFAHRS @
H o

b)) EHEBEEEXMNERAKIASEHZ
R -RZZE=Z—F+LA—H AHEEY
A10890008BTT —_E-_=F4NAGE
ENDHEEHRRFREEERRZTP K
BEEEATIEN M_T_—FE48
BERODEEZHRAR LEFRHEEERAE
FUER Y BB FUR L -
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30 June 2023
—ET-=FXA=+H

- =

24.

DEFERRED TAX

24, EIEFIE

The movements of the deferred tax assets and liability during the

year are as follows:

FRBRERBEEEMAGENEFNOT

Deferred tax assets EEHRBEE
Loss available
for offsetting
against future Lease
taxable profits Provisions liabilities Others Total
REAEHE
BEERD
piewilleol iE | BE HE8E Hity @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 July 2021 R-E-—F
+HA—H = 4,552 120 15 4,687
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profitorloss 5t A/ (IR B) £/
during the year (note 11) BEMEEHE
(Hiz#11) 7,824 (4,733) 190 14 3,295
Exchange realignment IE K A% (220) 181 (5) = (44)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZEZZFA
=tRR=Z-ZF
+H—H 7,604 - 305 29 7,938
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profitorloss &t A/ (3B &) R
during the year (note 11) BRaELHE
(Fizt11) (7,298) - (293) 32 (7,559)
Exchange realignment XA (306) - (12) - (318)
At 30 June 2023 RZZ_=%
~NA=+H - - - 61 61
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

By 755 R 3R B

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

24. FEEHIE (&)

Deferred tax liability EERIEEE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation
BHAERETE
WiTERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2021 R-—ZE-_—FtHA—H 5
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during FFAFNIB=AVRERIE (MaF7171)
the year (note 11) 5)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZZBEZZFRA=+THRK
—F__H+A—H -
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during MR EFRIBmARERE (HeF17)
the year (note 11) 409
At 30 June 2023 RZZTZ=FA=+H 409

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

WEBLIA T IH B ERELERBEE

2023 2022
—=2=-= -2
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Tax losses IEEE 25,107 8,779
Deductible temporary differences ABRERER 10,861 11,058
35,968 19,832
The above tax losses arising in Mainland China will expire in one LWERPEEENREERE  #§X—Z=8

to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above
items as it is not considered probable that sufficient future
taxable profits will be available against which the above items can
be utilised.

FREBIHA BEEERRERBERN o I
BERNLBERBECHAEE AR
R T REH FE R 2 AN R AR T ) A i 3K
$HIALIEE -
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B ISR AR M AL

30June£023
—E-_=%,A=1+H

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liability (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earmings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2023, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such eamings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in the
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$2,604,000
(2022: HK$2,633,000) as at 30 June 2023.

24. FEEHIE (&)

EEBIREE (#)

REBTECEMEIE ERERTRHT
BAARIINECENINEREENRE
BU10%TEMH - ZREH_—FTTNF—
A—BRER @AR_ZTLF+_-A
=t RZENAF - E A ESNE
KREENREER ZMITARBIRLY - 8
BRAMEIRELARD - LAKHE - E
AMERE% - At AREAHZFR T E
NBRIHNMBARR —ZTTNF— A —
B 1R B A Y BN P IR 3 P BB RO ©

R_ZE_=ZFA=TH HERLAEH
FA AR B A2 BT A% BT B A B AR BE A F (A8
TEINF) BEMTEINFERELTIE - EF
wﬁ R RER  ZEWBARTKA
EREEBAAEN RZTZZ—_F A=+
avmﬁﬁwﬁkmﬁﬁﬁm¢lmmw
BRABIKREMIRNEREZEBRELATA
#92,604,000# 7T (ZZF = — 4 : 2,683,000
BIT) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023

—ET-=FXA=+H
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A
2023 2022
—E-=F T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: VERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000 %
of HK$0.01 each BFREEC.O BT LB 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETERER:
480,000,000 ordinary shares 480,000,000 g
of HK$0.01 each BFREEC.O1 BT LB 4,800 4,800

26. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration paid
for the reorganisation, the capitalisation issue and the initial
public offering.

Other reserve

The balance of the other reserve represents the difference
between the aggregate of the paid-up share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
pursuant to the reorganisation undergone by the Group.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.

26. &
A EE AR R IR T M R A
FHEELIINE A ERBBRR o

(a)

(b)

(c)

IR A 518

Bt B B ITROMEERRE
- BRMEBTRERARBESHM
WREZHMERE

Hitf#E

REAEENEE - HREBHERE
ERBIMBAR ZBRIRAEEER
ARRRBZERAMEEITRAZ
EEZERE -

B 535 B fe
30 B R B AR E SN B S B
YRR 2 A BT AR A O A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %

R Y &

30 June 2023

= _—

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

=FXA=+H

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from (a)

(b)

financing activities

27. ZREBEEHRERM:E

MEEFHMELENEESH

Lease liabilities

HeEas
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 July 2021 R-ZE-—%+A—H 10,170
Changes from financing cash flows REREREY (4,298)
New leases HEE 125,880
Exchange realignment PE 3 & (3,150)
Interest expenses B 6,281
Interest paid classified as operating PEALETHRERIEMNFE
cash flows ﬂ )
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZEZZFA=+THEHRK
—E-_—_F#+A—H 128,602
Changes from financing cash flows BMEBRSRELEH (7,385)
New leases HHE 2,570
Exchange realignment M H PR (7,932)
Interest expenses FEZH 8,493
Interest paid classified as operating DEAKETHRESRZEMFE
cash flows w)
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=FA=1H 115,855
Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEZHERLHELE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the GEReRERENHEZRESRE
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: MRS
2023 2022
—®:=-= —E- =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Within operating activities KETEEA 22,723 13,978
Within financing activities BEEEHN 7,385 4,298
30,108 18,276
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Major non-cash transactions

U

(i

(i)

)

During the year, the Group has non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$2,570,000 (2022: HK$139,982,000) and
HK$2,570,000 (2022: HK$125,880,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
pbuildings. In the prior year, the additions to right-of-
use assets included the transfer of rental deposits
from prepayments, deposits and other receivables
of HK$14,102,000.

During the year, the Group has additions to property,
plant and equipment of HK$43,845,000 by utilising
the long-term prepayments and deposits. During
the year, the Group has also recognised the
estimated obligation, included in property, plant
and equipment and other payable and accruals of
HK$3,130,000 to deploy for automation, equipment
upgrades and leasehold improvement.

In the prior year, the Group had recognised the
estimated obligations, included in property, plant
and equipment and other payables and accruals of
HK$2,055,000 to dismantle, remove, restore certain
items of property, plant and equipment in respect of
premises under lease arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, interest income
of HK$2,417,000 (2022: HK$702,000) was not
yet received and was recognised in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables.

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

27. RERERERMT @)

() FEFREXRS

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

RERN AEBREFHER
NFEREEEREEASED
FRERNE D B AR 2,570,000%8
7T (=F = =% 139,982,000
BIT) k25700008 T (ZF
© 125,880,000 JT) °
REFRN FREEEZARE
BRECEMNRIE B kEM
EWHREFEHESHRS AR
14,102,000 TG °

RERN - REBEEBHARHE
NRERZREFAETME
B B & &% i 543,845,000
T RER AEBB R
AR BEEDE BEK
M I E M FE A SRIE R E AT B
FE AR+ 3,130,000 7T LA # BC 15
el [REAGRAEERE
TR~

REFER AEBEEBRMGE
B BREEME BERR
EREMEMNFIBRESER
F > 2,055,000/ JT AR B ~ IF
B BEETYDE BEER
HEEEREELHETRER -

REREEIR - AR YR F B IR
A2417,0008 T (Z T = =
F 1 702,000/ 7T) + W R T
R Be REAMEIRFIEF
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30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

28. =i
RIBERR - NEEGUTEAKIE -

28. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Contracted, but not provided for: BRTAEREE:
Leasehold improvements HERE - 12,448
Plant and machinery R fE M es - 23,966
Motor vehicle RE - 2,612
- 39,026

29. BB AR S
(a) BTHBEREEMBHAERNTS
o AEERERNEATHEY S 2 S

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year: ARG
2023 2022
—E-= -
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
btaE FHET FAET
Rental expenses paid to related ST F R A RMEERY
companies (i) 2,586 2,586
Rental expense paid to arelated A FRAB F A ER X
party (i) 408 408

) HERAIHINTEEREEH
MEBARESAZERAR AR
I —HEERE mMemE
BERAARBAEENHERE

(0} The rental expenses were paid based on tenancy
agreements entered into between a subsidiary of
the Group and Golden Park Development Limited,
which has common directors, Mr. Peter Chan

and Mr. Kenneth Chan, with the Group, and High EAREAELERRER X
Development Investments Limited, which has a £lbsh BERBEREBERA

AR — I HEWZE - MR
KREBRAREAEENHKRF
EERMREAESLE -

common director, Mr. Peter Chan, with the Group.

(i

The rental expenses were paid based on a tenancy
agreement entered into between a subsidiary of the
Group and the spouse of one of the directors of the
Group.

i) MERAXHINRERANEHE
MEBAREASERXEEHNE
BRI — D HE R -
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Conti )

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

20. AR S ()
(b) XEBEXEEE ASNEM

2023 2022
—EBC-=F —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other short-term Fe hEMEHEBSRT

employee benefits 48,481 49,625
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B R 21 21

Total compensation paid to YRTFTEEEEAEBNTNESE
key management personnel 48,502 49,646

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial
statements.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
statements as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

As at 30 June 2023

ERESERITRARFMNE—TF
BRI ERERMEEO

30. ZEFEATHEMTH

EMBREZEF N RERROBEEENT ¢

R-ZB-=FXA=+H

Financial Financial
asset at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAFEER REHEAE
BEARH HIBRH
SREE SREE FoEy
Mandatorily
designated
as such
BEIEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Financial asset at fair value through BATEBEFAER
profit or loss MeREE 9,901 - 9,901
Trade receivables B 5 WA - 37,740 37,740
Financial assets included in FTABEMRE - ke
prepayments, deposits and other R Hofth FE R IB Y
receivables PREE - 23,632 23,632
Restricted cash SRHFE - 122 122
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY - 305,757 305,757
9,901 367,251 377,152
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30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

30. REHETHE/MTE (&)

CATEGORY (Continued)

As at 30 June 2022 R—E-——FA=+H
Financial Financial
asset at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BATESER RE SRR
BE AR 5l BREY
SHMEE SHMEE e
Mandatorily
designated
as such
58 il 75
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FET
Financial asset at fair value through BATEBEFABE
profit or loss HEMEE 9,884 = 9,884
Trade receivables 2 SR RIE = 79,682 79,682
Financial assets included in FSPAEMRE - ke
prepayments, deposits and other K E R WRIER
receivables CHEE - 13,122 13,122
Restricted cash IR EIR & = 269 269
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLEED = 237,159 237,159
9,884 330,232 340,116
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RBHARIENSREE
2023 2022
—E-= —=E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables B S EMNFE 9,326 31,563
Financial liabilities included in other T AE AR FIR R BB R
payables and accruals SRAE 26,208 18,023
Lease liabilities HERAE 115,855 128,602
151,389 178,188
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31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss was
carried at fair value.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade payables,
lease liabilities, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of non-current deposits have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities, and were assessed to be approximated as
their carrying amounts.

The fair value of the unlisted fund investment is determined by its
net asset values quoted by the investment administrator of the
investment fund with reference to the underlying assets of the
funds.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Asset measured at fair value:
As at 30 June 2023

31.

By 755 R 3R B

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

TMIAENQAFERAFE
e

AEBMBAFEEFABSNEHEE
ARFEIIER -

BRERENMG ReLReFEYW IR
HEe BEHERKFIE BHEMFIE-
MEEE  ANFE R REMEBYKR
AAH) BB E AR E MR 5RIE - At
ERANEZREE AT EREKEENR
o NDTERRZETAIHRABEMR -

FRBFRORFETIZEREEG B
FEERBREGTIHHROTAR A
ARONEFTRERRRBE S RES
Wb REREERS -

s
(=
ZAr

FLITEERENATEERUERERS
MREEEERUES ZHBEENFE
EEEMRE °

AT ERHS
TERBAMEESRIANATETER
1w

RAFENBWEE :
R-_ZBE-_=FA=1+H

Fair value measurement using

AFEHRRA

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ER EATBR EXTAH

miEHRE BAE SN
(%5—8) (85=8) (5=8) @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Financial asset at fair value BATFEGEGTABES

through profit or loss SREE - - 9,901 9,901




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

30 June 2023
—E_=FRA=1H
31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 1. EMIEN LA FEERLAFE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL g @)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Coninued) AEERE B
Asset measured at fair value: BAFEIENEE:

As at 30 June 2022 R-T-_—FRA=TH
Fair value measurement using
AFEHERA
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
G ENGIE3 BERTAE
mi5RE BAE REAE
(F—E) (FZE) (8=RE) w5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET TET
Financial asset at fair value BATFEBEGABES
through profit or loss SRBE - = 9,884 0,884
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during FRN - B=ZEBARARTEEAEZZSHOT -
the year are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
At 1 July WEA—B 9,884 10,588
Total gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss ~ MIESER Z IS (E18) 1258 17 (704)
At 30 June A el =! 9,901 9,884

The Group did not have any financial liabilites measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

RZEBE—=FR=_FT-_—_FA=+1"
AEEMERMZATEFEZEHARE -

FR - F-—RE_BAFEEFE2HYL
EEY . EBEEANEHE=E (=%
ZF |
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
receivables, deposits, trade payables and certain other payables,
lease liabilities, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations.

Iltis, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group's
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

32.

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

BHEREERRRBK

FEEIZEN M IABERATEE
AABENEREE B REMBURK
B Re HEZRMRERETEMEN
RE MERE XRGFIBREURBEER
ReEEY ZEZemIANTIEENR
BEAEBREMFESR

REELBFEEAN  AEEZBEASTE
FEMTAZEER  MUTAE—EHE-

AEESHTAEENETERAKAINER
B EERBRERBDECRAR EELH
BRkiHpEAEAERSEZERRMBE -
EEan T o
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30 June 2023

—E_=FRA=1H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. IKEKREEEERBER &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued
Foreign currency risk S EEE | e
The Group has foreign currency exposures, which mainly arise AEEmEINER - EZRBUBITIA
from monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than INEBFENEBEERAE  A5E B
the Hong Kong dollar. The Group currently has no particular A 58 A RFE 90 T B S AN R B o
hedging vehicles to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk. AEBEETERBRITABTUINEERED
The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities BEEEEREE BEREENFRBES
held in currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar to ensure that AT K o

net exposure is kept at an acceptable level.

Since the exchange rate of HKS is pegged to USD, the Group BRRETEREE TN - A ANEEE
does not expect any significant movement in the USD and HK$ METRAETERSGHRAMELS -

exchange rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TREMANARKEEZNEE A fEE
possible change in the RMB exchange rates at the end of the B REIEEMEHERFEIENERLT
reporting period, with all other variables held constant, of the HAEERREPRRNGHIDES (BRE
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of BEERBEZAVEZE) RAQRER
monetary assets and liabilities) and the Company’s equity (due to (AREMEEREBEZATEED) NI
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). REEDHT o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in rate before tax in equity*
Ex R Bt Al 5 A Ex
TR/ (TH) #m,/ (A) #in,/ (Rd)*
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 30 June 2023 RZTZ=45F
~A=TH
If HKS weakens against RMB WETEARKEE 5 (6,043) -
If HK$ strengthens against RVIB AT AREAE (5) 6,043 -
As at 30 June 2022 RZE-—&F
~AZ=TH
If HK$ weakens against RMB WBE TR ARBEE 5 (2,031) -
If HK$ strengthens against RVIB WETEAREAE (5) 2,031 -
- Excluding retained profits - TBIERE & T
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30 June 2023

—EZ=FXA=1+H
32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. IKEKREEEERBER &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk EER
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEEERZRA FERINE=ZFR
third parties. It is the Group'’s policy that only well-established o REBHNBRRBEHRELEKANER
customers will be considered for open account terms and the EZEREKGHAGEERNIERE B RE
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check EERERF I BREHRSEFE
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on B RASBENZRERIT TEK -
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
Maximum exposure and year-end staging ESRARREEREER
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TRINTERAEEEERENEELE R
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which FEAHEEANERSEERR  HEZENE
is mainly based on past due information unless other information HER (BRIEEF AL BZAASE HENA
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging EESEMER) RRANA=Z+THNFRER
classification as at 30 June. The amounts presented are gross DEET -2 eERAEHEENERT
carrying amounts for financial assets. 4ag -
As at 30 June 2023 R-EB-_=F<A=1+H
12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses
1218 A 2H
BHEEER BEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
PEER 1 k(473 st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade receivables* B S EWRIE" - 38,078 38,078
Financial assets included in FTAERRIE - &E
prepayments, deposits and REMEKFIA
other recelvables CHEE
— Nomal** — E¥~ 23,632 - 23,632
Restricted cash XBRERE
— Not yet past due — AR 122 - 122
Cash and cash equivalents ReKRLEED
— Not yet past due — HAREE 305,757 - 305,757
329,511 38,078 367,589
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30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continueq)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

32. IEBREEEEREE &)

EERR &)
BERBRFRER (&)

As at 30 June 2022 RZZEZZFRA=+H
12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses
1218 A 25
EHEEER EHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
P E% 1 K97 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Trade receivables® B 5 EWGRIE" - 79,682 79,682
Financial assets included in STABEMRE - ke
prepayments, deposits and R E KRR
other receivables TREE
~ Normal** — EE™ 13,122 - 13,122
Restricted cash XREIRE
—Not yet past due — mAEH 269 - 269
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
—Not yet past due — AR 237,159 - 237,159
250,550 79,682 330,232

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, expected credit loss assessment is
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

= The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that
the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

ok

HRAKERAGCEEERENE FEK
FEME - ARENE H R EFRNTED
EEBRRBENPBRKMET19 -

BEIABNRR - REe R EMEKKIEN
SREEYEANANEERRASHE
ENEERR B VL EREE KIEE M
B HEEEZHERAIER] - BRI £
RAENGEEERBRA/ (A -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (:
Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of funds generated from
operations.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

32.

BA RS SRR M aE

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

HERMREEEERBE &)

AEENEERBREREEMSES
EESZARBEREEE 2 MRS TE -

AEBRHREBRER G LRI A
ETREEINHBERNAT

3toless
Less than than 12 1to5 Over 5
Ondemand 3 months months years years Total
3Z12f8A
REX  SR3fEA UT 1E55 BB5E £
HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$1000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
2023 —EC=F
Trade payables BHRMATE 4,408 4,158 474 286 - 9,326
Financial liabilties included in STAEMERTER
other payables and accruals EAERNERAR - 6,834 19,374 - - 26,208
Lease liabilties HEaE - 3,920 11,760 72,346 67,298 155,324
4,408 14,912 31,608 72,632 67,298 190,858
2022 bt Sk
Trade payables ESERFE 21,870 9,057 351 285 = 31,563
Financial liabilties included in FAEMERTER
other payables and acoruals EHERNSRAR - 6,831 11,192 S S 18,023
Lease liablities HEEE = 4,090 12,186 71,256 91,254 178,786
21,870 19978 23729 71,541 91,254 228,372
Capital management EXREE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn
in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders and retum capital to shareholders. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022.

AEBETEAERIETHEREBALHE
REFELE  URRRREHERILAEFH
EREREBIAOREE KA o

AEBEEREEAERERE RGBT E
BIFHAE - REFAFBEALERE £
SETRGABRKN TRRERORESER
MERREMER - BE_T =K -F
—FERNAZTHLEFE EEEANA
% BRIEFLEEHES -
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30 June 2023
—EZ=FXA=1+H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net

debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net debt includes

trade payables, other payables and accruals and lease liabilities

less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents the equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at

BERREEBERBE &)

EXEHE ®)

AEEFREEABLE (FEBHRNER
WFER) BERER - FEBEIBEHEN
RE - HENREREFERANEER
B RERERREEEBY -  BEXAEAR
AHEAARGEDZ RREHRNEER

the end of the reporting periods are as follows: B ET -

2023 2022
—Z-= —E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Trade payables B SR 9,326 31,563
Other payables and accruals Hitn e RIBRETER 37,492 46,244
Lease liabiliies HEEE 115,855 128,602
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BReRBESEED (305,757) (237,159)
Net debt FE (143,084) (30,750)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 BB A FEIGH#E RS 489,097 467,363
Capital and net debt BARKFERS 346,013 436,613
Gearing ratio BEARLE N/A REH N/A 38
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OF THE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By 755 R 3R B

30 June 2023
—E-_=F,A=+H

33. A D AMBMRR R

2023 2022
—EBC=F —F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEfBARZIEE 334,059 334,069
Financial asset at fair value through BRATEEGF AERD
profit or loss TREE - 9,884
Total non-current assets IEMBEEEE 334,059 343,943
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries e C NG 141,337 140,340
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEEFAEBSHNESRHEE
profit or loss 9,901 =
Other receivable H U RIE 250 =
Bank balance RITHERR 366 1,116
Total current assets mENEERE 151,854 141,456
CURRENT LIABILITY REAE
Other payable H b fE A A (1) =
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 151,853 141,456
Net assets BEEFE 485,912 485,399
EQUITY ER
Share capital &N 4,800 4,800
Reserves (note) & (Ba2) 481,112 480,599
Total equity s ER 485,912 485,399
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

34.

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

33. AR T MBEMRRE &)

Note: Kiit:
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AAvEEREZNT
Retained
Share premium profits Total
BRE REEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET
At 30 June 2021 R-_ZE=-——FA=+H 479,712 1,170 480,882
Profit and total comprehensive income FRmAREEl=s
for the year FEE] - 27,557 27,557
Final dividend for 2021 ZEZ-FERERE - (19,200) (19,200)
Interim dividend for 2022 T _FhHRE - (8,640) (8,640)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZEZZFA=1+H
—E_—_#%+A—H 479,712 887 480,599
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMNEEEKE
for the year k) - 43,713 43,713
Final dividend for 2022 —ToHFRPKRE - (32,640) (32,640)
Interim dividend for 2023 —E-=—FFRHRE - (10,560) (10,560)
At 30 June 2023 R-BE-_=F,A=+H 479,712 1,400 481,112
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 34. #HtEBHRK
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MBBRRER=ZZEZ_=FNA=ZFTN\BE

by the board of directors on 28 September 2023,

EEglERRENE -
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